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Corporate Information
2w & R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa

Ms. Yeung So Mui

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching

Ms. Yeung So Lai

Mr. Qiu Bin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Keung

AUDITOR
Andes Glacier CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
12/F., Tower B,

Tiley Central Plaza

Haide 3rd Road, Shenzhen

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 2108, 21/F., China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KYA-1110

Cayman Island

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

In the PRC:
China CITIC Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.sun1383.com

e-mail: ir@sun1383.com
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Properties Portfolio Overview
P 3k AL A LB

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
Completed projects
Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) (m?)

Saleable
Site Area Area  Commencement/
Project name Place (m) Residential  Shop  Office Others® Total (m)  completion date
Hong Long Gentury Plaza ~ Shenzhen N/A 7,454 12,664 52400 12230 84748 72518 2008/Q2-2010/Q4

7,454 12,664 52,400 12,230 84,748 72,518

Properties under development/to be develop

GFA (M)
Saleable
Site Area Area  Commencement/
Project name Place (m) Residential ~ Shop  Office Others® Total (m)  completion date
Le Paysage Shenzhen 43,538 90,015 8,002 - 36,732 134,749 98,017 2008/Q1-2014/Q2
Vacation Water Town Chaohu 122,636 102,777 10,500 - 3000 116277 113277 2005/Q2-2015/Q4
Shengshi Yayuan Shenyang 98,061 156,748 39,225 - 180 196,123 195973 2010/Q2-2015/Q4
349,540 571,727 - 39,882 447,149 407,267

Property leasing business

Interest
attributable to
the Group

100%

Interest
attributable to
the Group

100%
100%
100%

100% owned

Project name Place by the Group

Leaseable area

(m?)

Hong Long Plaza Shenzhen 64,397
Note:

(1) Includes club house and car parking space

4 Sun Century Group Limited A5 tt42 =B AR A &
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Group Financial Summary

A [ B 5 B 2
Result E4
For the year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALEFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBETIT AREFTRT AREBTT ARBFTT
Turnover L 226,830 324,669 324,494 819,375 362,369
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value HEVEH A AE
of investment properties #3gm, G d) 49,210 293,570  (752,000) 208,415 56,830
Impairment loss on inventories 1F & 2 R {EE1E (57,000) (48,000)  (260,506) - -
(Loss)/Profit from operations £ (§518) /5% 7 (331,452) 178,298 (1,257,948) (118,689) 172,541
Change in fair value of derivative $74 &/t T EH A
financial instruments TEREE) - 8 14,267 15,977 (19,994)
Finance costs BB A (211,070) (185,982) (156,023) (160,934)  (87,843)
Gain on bargain purchases BEEBEHNE
in respect of business EEE WS
combination - - - 123,979 -
Gain on derecognition of IR E
available-for-sale financial &R E WS
assets - - 33,306 - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & B A & &
= 100 17,719 81,873 200,801 -
Impairment loss on subsidiary D EAFIEHE 2
group classified as held for WEBEE 2 RE
sale &8 - - (8,861) - -
(Loss)/Profit before tax BREIRT(EE),
i ) (542,422) 10,043 (1,293,386) 61,134 64,704
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i(F%),/
i) (36,091) 29,277 175,259 (28,455) (33,497)
(Loss)/Profit and total (B18), &5 &
comprehensive (expense)/ 2HE(HAX),/
income gtk (578,513) 39,320 (1,118,127) 32,679 31,207
(Loss)/Profit attributable to RN EEE AEL
owners of the Company (&) & F (578,513) 39,320 (1,118,121) 37,609 32,699
(Loss)/Profit attributable to PANSIEIS I g i
non-controlling interests 1G5 (E18), = - - (6) (4,930) (1,492)
(578,513) 39,320 (1,118,127) 32,679 31,207
Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests EE BERFERER
At 31 December
Mm12H31H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARKETT ARBTT
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,145,171 1,091,181 792,760 1,889,099 1,436,304
Current assets MENEE 2,814,178 2,284,350 2,608,808 2,811,982 3,120,386
Current liabilities B E E (3,163,602) (2,428,561) (2,199,367) (1,523,929) (1,210,385)
Non-current liabilities EmE A& (337,666) (176,250)  (545,091) (1,400,926) (1,625,468)
Non-controlling interests AR - - - (995) (2,732)
Equity attributable to owners Z2R &% A A
of the Company FE(E R 458,081 770,720 657,110 1,775,231 1,718,105

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &



Chairman’s Statement

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Director”) of Sun Century Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). The Group
will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the
development needs in the future.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2013, the world economy continued to experience a slow recovery
from the global financial crisis. However, the consecutive quantitative
easing polices launched by the United States resulted the United
States and European countries rebounded from its bottom and
showed signs of recovery from negative growth.

China remained on track for steady economic development in 2013.
Most economic indicators during the year continued to remain
positive, easing worries about a deepening economic downturn.
The Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central Committee of China’s
Communist Party issued development guidance to “comprehensively
deepen reforms”. In addition, policies stated in the report of the
Third Plenary of the 18th Central Committee of China’s Communist
Party addressed many of the in-depth issues related to the property
sector, including the need to roll out reforms for rural land transfer,
press ahead with urbanization, bring forward legislation for property
tax reform, and establish sustainable policies to enable healthy
development of the property sector.

The property sector in China maintained in a steadily growth in 2013.
The transaction volumes and prices rose for both land and residential
markets due to strong demand in first and second tier cities as a
whole. Looking ahead, property developers are expected to continue
to enhance their overall operational capabilities to capture new
opportunities brought about by urbanization and retain their highly
competitive in the property market.
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Chairman’s Statement

E 2 e

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and
contribute to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have
actively participated in various charity activities involving cultural
education, disaster relief, environmental protection, health and
hygiene, as well as public transportation of the municipal. The Group
will continue to promote our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity
and love to the community internally, and bear our related social
responsibility.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust in, understanding of
and support to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also like
to thank all staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. We will
continue to explore new business opportunities in the challenging
year ahead and strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

28 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover: Turnover comprises of sales proceeds of properties
delivered and property leasing income. The turnover in 2013
decreased 30.13% when compared with 2012 turnover. In 2013,
we have delivered residential units and shops of approximately
1,337m? GFA and 5,772m? GFA respectively while we have delivered
residential units of approximately 1,367m? GFA, office units of
approximately 2,632m? GFA and shops of approximately 4,707m?
GFA in 2012.

Other net income: The decrease in 2013 was mainly due to
the shrink of the reversal of impairment on the trade and other
receivables and the reversal of overprovision of accruals during the
year. In 2013, the other net income was mainly attributable by the
net exchange gain, the reversal of impairment on trade and other
receivables and the reversal of overprovision of accruals.

Selling and distribution expenses: The increase in 2013 was
mainly due to the increase in advertisement and promotion events
incurred for the launch of the pre-sale of Le Paysage and the sales
commission incurred for the project of Hong Long Century Plaza.

General and administrative expenses: The increase in 2013
was mainly due to the increase of the manpower of the Group and
equity-settled share-based payments from the issue of share options
issued in December 2013 which was valued by an independent
valuer. The equity-settled share-based payments is one-off and non-
cash item.

Other operating expenses: The decrease in 2013 was mainly due
to the decrease in impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables.

Increase in fair value of investment properties: The increase in
fair value was mainly due to the prevailing market conditions.

Impairment loss on inventories: The impairment represented
the difference between the inventory costs and its fair value, as
assessed by an independent valuer.

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: Represented the disposal of a
subsidiary namely Shenzhen Hong Long Commercial Management
Company Limited at a consideration of RMB100,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B e B o A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Income tax: No current Corporate Income Tax has been provided in
2013 as there were no assessable profits in the Group companies.
The provision of income tax in 2013 was mainly due to the additional
LAT provision made for the sale of Hong Long Century Plaza during
the year.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS
In 2013, property development income and property leasing income
accounted for approximately 76.78% (2012: 85.76%) and 23.22%
(2012: 14.24%) respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

Total bank and cash balances and pledged deposits as at 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB331.55 million (31
December 2012: RMB15.22 million) which including RMB328.74
million, US$0.01 million, and HK$3.45 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB2,008.30
million as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: RMB1,803.82
million). Approximate RMB1,863.30 million were repayable on
demand or within one year; approximately RMB75.00 million were
repayable in the second to fifth year, inclusive; and the remaining
were repayable after five years. The Group’s borrowings carried
interest at fixed or floating interest rates. The Group’s total bank and
other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2013
was 50.72% (31 December 2012: 53.44%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB2,814.18 million (31 December 2012:
RMB2,284.35 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMBS3,163.60 million (31 December 2012: RMB2,428.56 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB600.44 million were secured by certain
investment properties and pledged deposits of the Group of
approximately RMB1,130.00 million and RMB314.38 million
respectively.

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in RMB. Except for a borrowing of HK$1,104.87
million, all of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. The
Group did not engage in any derivative activities and did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposure as
at 31 December 20183.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 34 to
the financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a staff force of
approximately 300 employees. Of this, most were stationed in the
PRC. The remuneration of employees was in line with the market
trend and commensurable to the level of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives (such as Share Option Scheme).
Total staff costs incurred for the year 2013 was approximately
RMB38.39 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year 2013 (2012: nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to the
note 40 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B e B o A

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development of middle to
high end residential and commercial properties as well as leasing of
commercial properties in Guangdong, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces,
the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s total leasable GFA is
approximately 64,000m? (2012: 64,000m?).

Summary of development and status of existing projects are
reported in the following paragraphs.

Projects Under Development

Le Paysage: Le Paysage is in the boarder land of Luohu district
and Buji of Longgang district of Shenzhen, on the hillside of the
east side of Qingping expressway and Fengyi mountain tunnel. Le
Paysage consists of premier villas, residential units and retail shops
with planned GFA of approximately 135,000m?. The project is under
construction with pre-sale and delivery in phases scheduled for the
second quarter of 2014 onwards.

Vacation Water Town: Vacation Water Town is situated in Zhongmiao
Town of Chaohu in Anhui Province. Vacation Water Town consists
of lake-side villas and residential units with planned GFA of
approximately 116,000m2. The Group planned to commence pre-
sale of the residential project in phases on the second half of 2014
onwards.

Shengshi Yayuan: Shengshi Yayuan is situated in Shenyang Tiexi
Industrial New City of Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone of Liaoning Province. Shengshi Yayuan consists
of high-end residence with planned GFA of approximately 196,000m?
and is under construction.

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &

EZ e

AEET2HETEERE EEERLHE
RETEREETRAXRDENFRENAEY
EWHEEER-

R2013F12A31H AEE A HEE 2 B &
SETHE 78 4964,000m2(20124F : 64,000m?2) ©

WAEBB Z#RFAORR T3t -

BERYPIEEB

LB FINEIR AR AR E RS
BEMEXRE BT aRREELRERA
Wi EoFINBE1RBRRAIE - TEBEMR
TEREEAMN - FHEREMEIEL135,000m?
IR R IFEME RIEEH - Wit E1742014
FEIEERDBEEIZ(T

BRKE: BAKBURLZHE LN EEE-
REXERMBENEMEEEMARK  HE
FZ A A 49116,000m? - A £ E 51 8] 742014
FTI¥FRARSHEREEETEEL -

Bt HESE R HESL I N B R RS R
MFREEEGEAEEN N - R EHIEHR
EE LM EA196,000m2H & g E 4K - %
BB EERER



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Future Development

On 19 July 2012, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
agreement of intent with an independent third party in relation to the
possible acquisition of the entire equity interest in Anhui Longsheng
Property Development Company Limited, a limited liability company
established in the PRC, which owns the project in Huangshan City
of Anhui Province. The consideration for the possible acquisition will
be negotiated between the parties based on the results of the due
diligence investigations.

On 8 January 2014, Fushun Sun Era Property Development
Company Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company won the bid for the land use right of a land at Hua Mao
Jie Dong, Fushun Economic Development Zone in Liaoning Province,
the PRC at a consideration of RMB95,510,000. The site area of
the land is approximately 72,350m? with a plot ratio of more than 1
but not more than 2.7 and a planned gross floor area of 195,345m?
for residential units. The land use is for commercial and residential
purpose with the term of grant of rights for 70 years and 40 years
respectively.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

The Group completed to dispose of a subsidiary named Shenzhen
Hong Long Commercial Management Company Limited during 2013
at a consideration of RMB100,000.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ERZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 39, was born in the Macao Special
Administrative Region. He joined the Company in September 2011
as executive Director and acted as the Chairman of the Company
on 8 November 2011. He engaged in the business of operating
and managing V.I.P. clubs at hotels, Mr. Chau was previously an
executive director and the chairman of Sun International Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8029) (“Sun International”), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprises Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and resigned on 5 July 2013.
Mr. Chau is also a Committee Member of China Overseas Friendship
Association.

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 38, joined the Company in October
2010 as executive Director. Ms. Yeung is the founder and a director
of Sparkle Life Charity Fund Limited. Ms. Yeung was appointed
as a director of Yan Oi Tong Limited on 1 April 2013. Ms. Yeung
is experienced in corporate management. Ms. Yeung So Lai, an
executive Director, is the sister of Ms. Yeung So Mui.

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, aged 32, joined the Company in September
2011 as executive Director. Ms. Cheng holds a bachelor degree
in commerce (marketing and advertising) from Curtin University of
Technology in Perth, Western Australia. Ms. Cheng has over the
past adopted a pragmatic and proactive management approach;
and delivered solid performance in various areas, in particular
corporate management and internal control. Ms. Cheng works at a
subsidiary of Sun International since her graduation and is currently
an executive director of Sun International. Ms. Yeung So Mui, an
executive Director, is the sister-in-law of Ms. Cheng.

Ms. Yeung So Lai, aged 36, joined the Company in September
2011 as executive Director and acted as the chief executive officer
of the Company on 1 February 2012. Ms. Yeung is presently a
director of number of private companies engaged in the business of
bird’s net trading and investment holding. Ms. Yeung is experienced
in corporate management. Ms. Yeung was previously an executive
director Sun International and resigned on 13 August 2013 Ms.
Yeung is currently an executive director and chief executive officer
of JF Household Furnishings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive
Director, is the sister of Ms. Yeung So Lai.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Qiu Bin, aged 46, joined the Group at 1 November 2011
as the chief executive officer of Sun Century Property Group
Company Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidy of the Company
incorporated in PRC. Mr. Qiu appointed as executive Director at 19
June 2012. Mr. Qiu holds a Master’'s Degree in Management from
the Asia International Open University (Macau). He had worked with
various large corporations in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen and
been responsible for project investment and assets restructuring.
Mr. Qiu has over 15 years of experience in investment management.
He was the general manager of China Technology Education Trust
Association from January 2009 to October 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, aged 37, joined the Company at 26 April
2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
audit committee and the members of remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou
& Co. Mr. Tou graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours
Diploma in Accounting in 2001. He is experienced in audit, taxation,
company secretarial, insolvency and finance for over 15 years.
Mr. Tou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and an associate of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Tou is currently an independent non-executive
director of Sun International.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick, aged 75, joined the Company at 26
April 2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of nomination committee and the members of audit committee
and remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree
and Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of
Buckingham, United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also Associate of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple, the
Victorian Bar, Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was awarded
Diploma in Chinese Law by the then University of East Asia, Macau,
now known as the University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at the Hong
Kong Bar for over 33 years. He is still now one of the practising
members of Hong Kong Bar Association.
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Biographical Details of Directors
HHZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 45, joined the Company at 10
October 2012 as independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of remuneration committee, the members of audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Lo graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science (with honours) in
Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo is experienced in securities and
finance industry for over twenty years. He is currently the managing
director (equities) and head of institutional sales of SBI E2-Capital
Financial Services Limited. He was an executive director and head
of sales of ICBC International Securities Limited from April 2009 to
August 2010.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 20138.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
a real estate property developer in the PRC. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are set out
in note 38 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 40 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OPEN OFFER

On 5 September 2012, the Company proposed to raise not less
than approximately HK$313 million before expenses and the Set-off
by issuing not less than 1,254,184,050 offer shares and not more
than 1,320,181,518 at the subscription price of HK$0.25 per offer
shares on the basis of six offer shares for every one shares of the
Company on the record date. The proposed open offer has been
completed on 9 January 2013 and the net proceeds from the open
offer amounted to approximately HK$244 million (after deducting the
cost and expenses in relation to the open offer and the set-off with
the shareholder’s loan). Details of the open offer please refer to the
announcement dated 5 September 2012, 22 January 2013 and the
circular dated 16 November 2012. Such net proceeds have been
used in the following manner:

The deposits for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Anhui Longsheng Property HBRET AR ZIEE

Development Company Limited
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 31 to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and retained profits/accumulated losses.
The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
at 31 December 2013 were approximately RMB479,663,000 (2012:
RMB514,658,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately RMB2,426,000 (2012: RMB2,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 12.58% and 54.33% of the
aggregate of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 25.39% and 57.87% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the
said top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (Chairman)
Ms. Yeung So Mui

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching

Ms. Yeung So Lai

Mr. Qiu Bin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
14 to page 16 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. All of the
executive Directors do not entered any service contract with the
Company. All of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years
and | subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the article of association of the Company and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Yeung So Lai, Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, Dr. Wu Kam Fun
Roderick will retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules) and both the Board and the
nomination committee considered that all independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors in the

shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any

of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”) were as follows:
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Percentage
Number of shares of aggregate
RHA#A interest to
Number of total number
Underlying of shares
shares held in issue*
under equity %
derivatives BRER
Personal Family Corporate BRASTE HERTRS
interest interest interest T AEEHE Total #EZEDL*
Name of director ~EEH#H BARER RikER NEIRER B ZEE @ %
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa A %4 - - 861,048,842 - 861,048,842 58.85%
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEERT - 861,048,8422 - - 861,048,842 58.85%
Notes: BT -

1. This represents interests held by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa through Fame Select Limited
(“Fame Select”), which holds 861,048,842 shares of the Company. Mr. Chau Cheok
Wa has 50% interest in Fame Select, he is therefore deemed to be interested in

861,048,842 shares of the Company..

2. This represents interests held by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong through Fame Select, which
hold 861,048,842 shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng Ting Kong has 50% interest
in Fame Select. Ms. Yeung So Mui is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ting Kong and she

is therefore deemed to be interest in 861,048,842 Shares of the Company.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the

Company in issue as at 31 December 2013 (i.e. 1,463,214,725 shares).

1. IEBAREELEEREFEARAR ([BE])FE
ZHERS  MABXH B A RAFI861,048,842 %15 AR
ERERBEBAS0RIE - AM BB AEEARA
861,048,842 I 19 2 #E 2k
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AR A)861,048,8420 1D - BT B AR B EHSE
50% I BRI LT AT AEENERME  BHimE
R BB N2 F)861,048,842M IR 15 2 #E2s ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’d)
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in this report and in note 37 to the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2013, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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Fame Select’ Beneficial owner 861,048,842 (L) - 58.85%
BE BEmEBA

L: Long position ¥ &
Notes:

1. Fame Select owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and 50% by Mr. Cheng Ting
Kong. As such, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong were deemed to be
interest in 861,048,842 shares of the Company held by Fame Select.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2013 (i.e. 1,463,214,725 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
had not been notified of any interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholder’s written resolution of the Company.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which
may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which
granted and/or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2013, a total of 138,981,243 share options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,

consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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Directors’ Report

R
SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) BB E (&)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) (A) RIRFETE (E)
Exercise price TIE1E
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher HEEeET BETEBERUTZES
of: &

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued shares capital that it represents
as at the date of this annual report

16,321,472 shares, being approximately 1.12% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under
the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

(@) Bfpzmi{E:

b) REERM(AREXR) BN AR
R BB THE: &

() E#E#TE BHA R EZ X BRI £
P2 FH T E

A BETTIR (7 A8 B0 R AN 4F 3 H B 2
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16,321,472[% f& 10 - G A2 B E BT R (%D
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P

SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 31 January 2017,
after which no further options will be granted but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and
remain unexercised immediately prior to 31 January 2017 shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.

(B) MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Movements of the share options, which were granted under
the Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December
2013 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the

wRRE (&)

(A) RBRESTE (&)
ZETEZ 8 T FR
ZETE B EB KRB M E £2017F1 31
B WEETSE BT RE Bkt
B2 BEXARBEEMAT EBER T BN
NRBB-RZTE AR L BERERE
20171 AB1BAMDAREITEERE LM
AN 2 Rk BRI EERBES 2
BEGERTFUAITE  BEZTEZHRE
& % °

ARETE 22
HZE2013F12A31ALFER RER
fRiErt 8 L 2 RREE BN T (HIRE
ERAISE17.076ET]) ¢

(B

~

Listing Rules:
During the year
ER
Share
adjustment

As at due to open Lapsed/ As at
Date of 1.1.2013 offr  cancelled 31122013  Exercise  Exercise
grant  R2013%  Granted Exercised AR¥EEL  BAM/  R013F price period
Category £3 REBE 1818 BEA B HRHBEER BHE# 128318 ke gL
Continuous Contract BEAHES 1652007 166,504 - - 349220 - 515814 478 15.11.2007 -
Employees 14.6.2017
10.10.2007 124,066 - - 260,252 - 384,318 778 104.2008 -
9.10.2017
12.12.2013 - 17,000,000 - - - 17,000,000 0398 13122013 -
12.12.2023
Consultants Bf 15.5.2007 1,616,217 - - 8387970 - 5,004,187 478 15.11.2007 -
1452017
13.2.2008 992,701 - - 2,084,223 - 3,076,924 442 13.8.2008 -
12.8.2018
12.12.2013 - 113,000,000 - - - 113,000,000 0398 13122013 -
12.12.2023

Total @it 2,899,578 130,000,000 - 6,081,665 - 138,981,243

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &



SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(B) MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Cont’d)

Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case
of right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share

capital.

2. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously

recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of
contributions to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong’s Mandatory Provident Funds, respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules.
Other transactions which exempted from the requirements of the
Listing Rule are also disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements
as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period as
set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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P

AUDITOR

On 3 November 2011, RSM Nelson Wheeler Certified Public
Accountants, who acted as auditor of the Company for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, resigned and Andes
Glacier CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy and hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Andes Glacier CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint Andes Glacier CPA Limited, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

28 March 2014

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices, as amended from time to time
(the “Code”), as stated in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Listing Rules”). As far as the Code is concerned, the Company
complies with all aspects of the Code during the year ended 31
December 2013 save as disclosed below.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the independent non-executive Directors should attend the general
meetings of the Company. In accordance with the requirements
of code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting.
However, due to other business commitment, the chairman of the
Board and the independent non-executive Directors did not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2013.
At the annual general meeting of the Company, there was chief
executive officer and executive Director, Ms. Yeung So Lai present to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views
of the shareholders of the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware of any
noncompliance with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom five are
executive Directors, and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business
needs. The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management process
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and has received from each of them the
annual confirmation of independence required by the Listing Rules.

e XA E e
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Details of the biographies of the directors are given under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report. Except for
Ms. Yeung So Mui is the sister of Ms. Yeung So Lai and is the sister-
in-law of Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, members of the Board is unrelated
to each other.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies and policies; approval of business
plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Company'’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and senior management of every business
segment, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities.

Directors =
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa e &
Ms. Yeung So Mui CEY - e
Ms. Cheng Mei Ching BIEFRR L
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEREBEXT
Mr. Qiu Bin BB 38 52 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B FHITESE:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen fHigF L
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [iEGE A= .
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EFERTE

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 40 £ AR A &
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ZEERE UBEERAREEMELZ
8-

Board meeting General meeting
Attended/Held Attend/Held

Exgg3 BRAE
HEBITZRE HE BT ZRE
7/7 0/1

7/7 0/1

7/7 0/1

7/7 1/1

5/7 0/1

4/7 0/1

4/7 0/1

5/7 0/1



Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of
the directors in person or through other electronic means of
communication. Besides the regular Board meetings, special
Board meetings are convened from time to time for the Board to
discuss major matters that require the Board’s timely attention. As
some of the special Board meetings are concerned with the day-
to-day management of the Company which often requires prompt
decisions, usually only the executive directors attend. During
2013, apart from holding Board meetings, the Board also passed
resolutions in writing to approve certain matters.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibility are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

Internal Controls

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective internal
control system in order to protect the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system. The internal control system includes a
well-established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department is
responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to implement
and monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and
effective employment of the resources of the Company, in order
to avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the
Company’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and audit committee assess the effectiveness of the
internal control system and procedures based on information derived
from discussions with the management of the Company and its
external auditor. The Board and audit committee believe that the
existing internal control system is adequate and effective.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

Corporate Governance Report
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Internal Controls (Cont’d)

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its management
staff within the Group. The Group has a defined goal for each
department to accomplish, these goals were discussed in the Board
meeting and pass on to the management through the executive
directors. These goals will be implemented and closely monitored by
the executive directors who shall review the operational and financial
results from time to time, and to take any necessary actions for the
improvement of it business activities.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa is the chairman of the Company. The
Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board
and the strategies and policies of the Group. Ms. Yeung So Lai is the
chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive officer’s
responsibility is to monitor the daily operation and management of
the Company.

Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training so
as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance and corporate governance practices organized by
professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and
self-reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Luk Chi Keung, a
member of HKICPA. The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. Mr. Luk has taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing
and overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. The committee’s authorities and duties are set
out in written terms of reference.

1 remuneration committee meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2013. Members of the remuneration committee and

the attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members

Corporate Governance Report
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AEIWE
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Attend/Held

ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) ERREE (F/E) 1/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MHEFEE 1/1
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick AR ENTE L+ 1/1

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

() to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(i) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board’s approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive Directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv) to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company’s share option scheme.
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Nomination Committee
The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation

to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management

of the Board’s succession. The committee’s authorities and duties

are set out in written terms of reference.

1 nomination committee meetings were held during the financial year

ended 31 December 2013. Members of the nomination committee

and the attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members

REEESE
REZEGAENZEETREFTGLLEE
BEREFERIEBER - ZREZRER
BESNESmBEDE-

REZEZEeNHE2013F12A31 B L FEE
T—RXeZ REZEeKERAELFSE
REHEH ST

Attend/Held

ZEERE HEE BT
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) A BE L (FE) 1/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HEFELEE 1/1
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EERLE 1/1

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are posted on

the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(0

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.
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Audit Committee
2 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31

Corporate Governance Report

1 56 B i o
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December 2013. Attendance of the Members is set out below: TT—//\@E EX,:'\ HE 2R EE ZZDT

Committee members Attend/Held
ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) MHEFEE (EE) 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick AR EN TS = 2/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EHREAE 2/2
The terms of reference of the audit committee are posted on the HiZZEE W BEEHENARAD 7 4H0EE#H -

Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor,
and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process;

to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to review
significant and judgemental financial reporting issues contained
therein;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems; and

to discuss with the management the system of internal controls,
and to ensure that the management has discharged its duties
and responsibilities in implementing an effective internal control
system.

The Group’s 2013 interim report and 2013 annual report have been

reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that such

reports were prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting

standards and requirements. For the 2013 annual report, the audit

committee met with the external auditors to discuss auditing,

internal control, statutory compliance and financial reporting matters

before recommending it to the Board for approval. The committee

also monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the code

provisions on corporate governance practices as required under the

Listing Rules.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

REME
Audit ZE

— Current year —ARFE
Others B

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information which
enables shareholders and investors to make a properly informed
investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt
with in an informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly
to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.sun1383.com, where extensive information and

updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant

changes made to the Company’s Articles of Association affecting its
operations and reporting practices.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company by sending a written
notice to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong, shall convene an extra-
ordinary general meeting to address specific issues of the Company
within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same
requirement and procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled
at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out
in the notice of general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general
meeting is enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend
or are unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form
and return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, so as to appoint a representative, another shareholder or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.

Corporate Governance Report
B RRY

iR SR A

REAQFRMEZERARY TAKFAELIR
ARBFRBRAT D2 —HARRRBRA#
BBRANBEEETRLEFRMH ZIEFERATA
WEBHEMER BREZTSARABRRRS
FIRE UEREARBFERE: ARAGA
RESEBBANEABANRET LHRER
BFTERNEZRR KRG UHERR 2T
B

BRERLKEZTGETIZHANER A BUHR
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AN AR BB B RIAF ARG REMBRA
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 1 1% B B

Andes Glacier CPA Limited

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

\ "2 ]
/ B g =t AT R R E]
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUN CENTURY
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Century Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 140
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 42 B AR A &
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Andes Glacier CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hsu Yuk King, Mercedes

Practising Certificate Number: P03548

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

fok 7 THL AR B A 2 T W 4%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z2013F12A31H It FE

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other net income

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Impairment loss on inventories

(Loss)/Profit from operations
Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments

Finance costs
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

(Loss)/Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

EXE

55 & AR

E7

H Y A3 BR

HERDHER
— R RITHRE R

H2Z8M

BREMEN R ARERIE
FEZRERE

e (BB BF

MTEEMIANAAE

HE B
A& A

HE KB AR m s

BRBiAT (BB, EF

Frfsii () %

FEE(BR) BANR2E
(FX), /WA

BT AL
ZAN/NETEZ 2 SN

BR (BB BF

EXRES

Notes
B 7

6

10

5

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
226,830 324,669
(128,041) (129,183)
98,789 195,486
40,798 134,773
(98,879) (13,568)
(84,501) (54,675)
(279,869) (329,288)
49,210 293,570
(57,000) (48,000)
(331,452) 178,298
- 8
(211,070) (185,982)
100 17,719
(542,422) 10,043
(36,091) 29,277
(578,513) 39,320
(578,513) 39,320
RMB cents RMB cents
AR S AREES
(40.52) 6.12




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MBRNE

At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Trading securities

Pledged deposits

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables, and accruals

Receipts in advance
Rental and other deposits

Bank and other borrowings — due within one

year
Current tax liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

W% BEREE
REME
EXERBAEE

REBEE

TH
P M S 3 A M 3
BEERS

EEEEEER
RITRBASER

REBAE

FEASS BR K~ LA FE A5 5K S TR R

£

8 U R X
HENMEMZRE
RITREMIER -
R —F R H
AR IARE

REBAEEFHE

EERERRBRE

Notes
B 7

16
17
27

18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25

26

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
5,909 7,676
1,130,000 1,080,000
9,262 3,505
1,145,171 1,091,181
1,855,454 1,585,656
625,136 681,341
2,037 2,130
314,377 1,155
17,174 14,068
2,814,178 2,284,350
538,483 561,558
721,608 14,816
8,780 28,934
1,863,299 1,803,822
31,432 19,431
3,163,602 2,428,561
(349,424) (144,211)
795,747 946,970
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fk B B 5 IR L 2

At 31 December 2013 720135127318
2013 2012

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P =E AR®T T ARETTT

Non-current liabilities ERBAERE

Bank and other borrowings — due after one  $R1T M E M EE—

year R —F1& 5|5 26 145,000 L
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE 27 192,666 176,250
337,666 176,250
NET ASSETS BEEFH 458,081 770,720
Capital and reserves EARERf#HE
Share capital fi&% 2 28 120,551 18,949
Reserves Tk 31 337,530 751,771
TOTAL EQUITY ESEEE 458,081 770,720
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014. BEEEMN2014FE3 288 £ I 57 T3
Chau Cheok Wa Yeung So Lai
R g BEE
Director Director
EFE EZ

42  sun Century Group Limited AR t4 EE AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 January 2012

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of shares

Equity component of convertible notes

Conversion of convertible notes

Share option cancelled
Change in equity for the year

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments

Change in equity for the year

At 31 December 2013

Notes
i
R20125181R
RERENRZENAEE
Bk 2()
TRRZEERDH 2
RETRREE 28(0) 429
BiENARE 32()
RERRREE
R2O012E12831B R
013F1A1A
AEREER2ARMEE
ki 28(d)
BANBREERIRR AER
B 320)
RERRAEY
R2013512A31R

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & £2013F 1231 H It F /&

ARAEEAER
Convertible

Share Share Merger Statutory Capital notes reserve  (Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve iR losses) Total
R4 RiHEE AbEE EERRE B4Rk SERE  (RHER) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AREFR  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
1,971 765,604 24001 49373 17,694 - (211,759 657,110
- - o 3 - - 39,320 39,320
4,991 44,897 - - - - - 49,888
- - - - - 6911 - 6,911
1,987 22,415 - - - (6,911) - 17,491
- o 5 - (6,372) - 6,372 -
6,978 67,312 - - (6,372) - 45,692 113,610
18,949 832,016 24,201 49313 11,322 - (166,067) 770,120
- - - - - - (678,513 (678,513
101,602 162,312 - - - - - 263,914
- - - - 11,960 - - 11,960
101,602 152,312 - - 11,960 - (678,513 (312,639)
120,551 985,28 24201 493713 23,282 - (744,580) 458,081
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAaBlehar

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z2013F 12 A31H - FE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Amortisation and depreciation
Equity-settled share-based payments

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Reversal of overprovision of accruals

Reversal of impairment on trade and other
receivables

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments

Net realised and unrealised loss/(gain) on
trading securities

Impairment loss on inventories

Operating (loss)/profit before working
capital changes

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other
receivables

Increase in pledged deposits

Decrease in trade and other payables, and
accruals

Increase/(Decrease) in receipts in advance

(Decrease)/Increase in rental and other
deposits

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Sun Century Group Limited APZ 42 B AR A &

Notes
Bt =
REED
BREEAT (EE) 8 F
JAEIER -
M B A
BB
BIHRITE
A A E MR D A ETE S
E
JFEE LT PR AR e L 7 MK B K
BEE
BOERRER CBEEE
185 ] 8 LAY B A0 % L At 8 AR
VERE]
HEWE - BER&REBWER

& — B 8 & B B W 2
REWMEN R A EIEN
R

TTESRMIANRAAED

33(a)

BEERAFNERIRER
BiE, (M) B8
FEZRERBE
EELESHBAINKE
(&18), &
el
JFE M5 R A5 % L A WK
() mA
RGeS /S il
FEAS BR X~ ELAh B A 5 S TR ER
ERRD

RUERRE M O D)
MEREMZE OBL)
il

EEDANRS
ENAEH

REZDHANREFE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
(542,422) 10,043
(8,506) (52)
211,070 185,982
2,422 2,769
11,960 1
223,696 223,876
(12,136) 1
(2,086) (45,000)
(431) (136)
(100) (17,719)
(49,210) (293,570)
= (8)

93 (241)
57,000 48,000
(108,650) 113,944
(204,067) (104,930)
(165,405) 48,588
(313,222) (77)
(32,103) (587,895)
706,792 (3,230)
(20,154) 17,166
(136,809) (516,434)
(13,431) (6,441)
(150,240) (522,875)



INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Decrease in consideration receivables
Proceeds from sale of trading securities
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
Interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Drawdown of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes
Proceeds from issue of shares

Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HABlengg

For the year ended 31 December 2013 £, £2013%12A31H It F /&

Notes

B &

REED

BEVE BFENIEHE
HEDE  BE MRREMEK
I8
P& U5 A 1B R
HEBERSFMEREA
& — P B & R TS 5K IR
RG]
RERHEEW

ReFH

BMEEE
RREURTT R E & K
EERTREMER
BRTABRERRREZIMERE 29
TITIAD TS 3RIR

Eﬁﬂ@

MEEBHEEMN

ReFH
ReRASZEYOEM
(RD)FE

1A1ENRERREEEY

12A31HREREELEEY

RERBREEBENIN

RITRBASER

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
(1,552) (6,905)
1,177 389

= 75,603

= 407

40 116,316

8,506 52
8,171 185,862
1,319,556 1,016,204
(1,059,000) (522,339)
= 24,402
197,835 49,888
(313,216) (273,695)
145,175 294,460
3,106 (42,553)
14,068 56,621
17,174 14,068
17,174 14,068
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S0 % % B

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 35 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

1.

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is 12/F., Tower B, Tiley Central Plaza
Haide 3rd Road, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange. In the opinion of the Directors, as at 31 December
2013, Fame Select Limited, a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands, is the immediate parent and Mr. Chau Cheok Wa
and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong are the ultimate controlling parties of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2013. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) and Interpretations (“Int”).

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)
Amendments to HKFRS

10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

HKAS 19 (as revised in Employee Benefits

2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in Separate Financial Statements
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in Investments in Associates and Joint
2011) Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

K (IFRIC*) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ER#FIRKEITEBHBR

48

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement of
comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income” and an “income
statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories;
(@) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change
the option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (revised 2011)
and HKAS 28 (revised 2011) together with the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding the transitional
guidance. HKAS 27 (revised 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control
such that an investor controls an investee if and only if it has
(@) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. As a result of the initial application of HKFRS
10, the directors of the Company made an assessment whether
the Group has control over its investees at the date of initial
application and concluded that the application of HKFRS 10
does not result in any change in control conclusions.

R REBTERBHBER
SR ([FBMBREEN])
(%)

RE RERHE BEATARKEMN
3T R A4S ST 2 A

RAFE AEEERERTEMBHRE
ERIE105  BAMBRELA S 115
BAMHREENE 125 BAERHER
27 (011 FEIEET) BB &£
8% (2011 F 5 3]) ERE R B
ERBIFI0% BB B RE LB H11
5 BB WS LR B 125RIE T A0 B
EHEIES| - BB G ERH275 (20114
e TEARAERE  HRERSH
B3 B B 4R -

ERZFEUNNZEWM TR

BB IR E BRI E 1055476 A1 752
&=
ERVHREEMNE1EMAE LS
HERIE2THREEE RBLV B RERAEGH
RAERBRRZBOLEEE (FREER
Bg) —REF12%R[He " HFKRENE
Bl -BEEVBRELENFIOCREFER
2 REAHREHROIZEHLAR
im0 T = B R fF (@) IR E B RTT
N OHLSEREHREEMTEH
Bl A AE R REAEN - K (c)pEsE
REHREARZBENUAZEREERD
W - EN B BB S ERIF 1057
MHRER  ARARESHEEVBRS
ERFIORVRERAAEELKREY
KOEFIEET T HELBHERRBR
F& &8/ 15 85 R 105k N E 3R
ihi] 4% o B AR AR AT A o

Annual Report 2013 =Z — =44

49



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

50

(Cont’d)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Details are
set out in notes 38.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements for both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value.

HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

HKFRS 13 has been applied (prospectively as of the beginning
of the annual period and resulted in additional disclosure as set
out in notes 5 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS
13 has not had any material impact on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Cont’d) (&)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective EEBENRERZFITRLEITE
BB REER

AR TR R TSI S KRR
ERZ ] SRIER] BB M B RE &R -

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® ERMBMEEN SRIAS
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Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and BERAMBREEL BAUBREERESRN
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(Cont’d)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

¢ HKFRS 9, as amended in December 2013, amended the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9. The mandatory
effective date is not specified in HKFRS 9 but will be
determined when the outstanding phases are finalised.
However, application of HKFRS 9 is permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of the/other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to
bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that
will allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

The effective date of HKFRS 9 is not yet determined. However,
earlier application is permitted.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (i) add definitions
for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’ which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’.
The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based
payment transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1
July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014.

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ER#FIRKEITEBHBR
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) HFEA([FEEMKEREED])
(Cont’d) (&)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective EHEMAENRERZHITRKEITE
(Cont’d) BHEREER (&)

BB EERFIOF =/ T A
(%)

ARPEZEY ARRABFEMBERE
ERFORAEEHAKEEHEERS
REEMERSBEREATE -

HARNERAREEAEBOLBA
ERSBABERNY BT —AAE
o fhit o

BB #HEER2010F £22012F
BRZ FEIE

EBYBHEED2010F 22012FF
ZEENEREZENTRES MG R
EEAER ZIB5T BREFT T -

BB RE LR BE2RETANERT
[ 55 B 1610 ] A0 [ 77 45 i 1R ] 8958 2% 5 R (ii)
BT [EEGE] R IRBEEG] OEE
(ERERMABBBREINER) &S
MR EENFERESTANERTHAR
014F7A1B 2 BB IR BHE
2 o

MRS LR EIIREFTANEH  R®
EREAHMROBREELRBENIA
REBROAEFE BRIAAKRER
BRBEAMBHRELNFIRKBF LS
ERFIRBEAN SR T AT R
BEXAB - AAEEZY (GFEHARR
SN ERBRAER - BBV K RELER
SEIRIEFT AN E IR B B 820147 A1H
K2R EFAHAR



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Cont’d)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to
the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets
are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting,
if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ER#FIRKEITEBHBR

56

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not
apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKAS 32 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with early application
permitted and require retrospective application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 32 may result in more disclosures
being made with regard to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities in the future.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 require disclosures on additional
information about the fair value measurement when the
recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value
less costs of disposal. If the recoverable amount is fair value
less costs of disposal, an entity shall disclose the level of the fair
value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of the
asset or cash generating unit is catergorised in its entirety. The
Group is required to make additional disclosures for Level 2 and
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

e a description of the valuation techniques used to measure
the fair value less costs of disposals. If there is any change
in valuation techniques, the fact and the reason should also
be disclosed;
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Cont’d)

e each key assumption on which management has based its
determination of fair value less costs of disposal;

e the discount rates used in the current and previous
measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is measured
using a present value technique.

The amendments to HKAS 36 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied, and require
retrospectively application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 36 may result in additional disclosures
being made with regard to the impairment assessment on non-
financial assets.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
inventories and financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. TREFHE (&)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

60

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB349,424,000. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
no going concern issue since there were Receipts in advance
amounting to RMB721,608,000 included under current liabilities
which are non-refundable receipts and will transfer to turnover in
the coming years.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(b) Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction- by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(b) Business combinations (Cont’d)

()

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(d) Foreign currencies

(e)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are presented in the functional and presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi (“RMB”)) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(f)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of
completion.

— Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

—  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

— Motor vehicles 4 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

If a property held for sale becomes investment property, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the
lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to a produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(g) Leases (Cont’d)
(i) Finance leases (Cont’d)

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
lease term or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in

note 3(e).

The Group as lessor
(i) Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

(h) Inventories
(i) Properties for future development/
under development for sale

Properties for future development/under development
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land
lease payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the reporting
period less selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to properties held for sale at the then
carrying amount. Properties for future development/
under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete

beyond normal operating cycle.

(i) Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of properties include
acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period less selling
expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing market

condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Financial instruments

3. FEFFEE (&)
() @I A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or
loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-
for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at

FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line
item.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bank and cash balances, and pledged
deposits) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(i)

)]

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s investments are classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(I) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(I) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(I) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
and accruals, rental and other deposits and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) ( &

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(m) Derivative financial instruments

(n)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the

nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Sales of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties are
completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue from
sales of properties excludes business tax and other
sales related taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position under
receipts in advance.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(n) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the operating leases. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.
Rental income excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes.

(iii) Property management income
Revenue from property management is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(o) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(o) Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group to

the funds.

The Group contributes to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the PRC. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred, to the extent that

they are not capitalised as inventories.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(p) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to

certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(o))

(a)

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and recognised as expense.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in capital
reserve will be transferred to (accumulated losses)/retained
profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 3. TESEFEXK (#)
(r) Taxation () BE

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC corporate
income tax purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 3. TESEFEXK (#)
(t) Related parties (t) BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the BEATAEAEEBBE L ALX
Group. B8
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is A) MBI TAL BIZZALsEZ
related to the Group if that person: ATRERENRENK B BARE
B =gap

() has control or joint control over the Group; () FEHIskEREHANER :

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BREBEEEATE : K

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAKEXAKERAAZ
the Group or of a parent of the Group. FEEEBEAE -

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (B) WRA TNHEMIEHE Nz EE

conditions applies: BN R B 5 g

() The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBEASEBR —£E
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary ZKBRAa (BN&&RAal K
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). BRI &R RHKE QAL

MBREE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy " EERBAES —ZBEMNHE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a NAZEERE (IS &
member of a group of which the other entity is a BREKNBRARZEBBETK
member). BRAIZEERRHEE D

¥)o

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEAEBHARRA-—FE=7H
party. BREDRFE-

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HERAF=-FEENA
other entity is an associate of the third party. EhE - ME—BERBARE

= Emﬂﬁi FYS /_\ l:l

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZEBAASENEREH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity FRE EREMEENERZ
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a hvazoR-rd R e = K NS
plan the sponsoring employers are also related to EASRZEE AHE
the Group. MEEX DT RERNEEEH

go
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (Cont’d)
(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont’d)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets except investment properties,
deferred tax assets, inventories and financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i 3¢ M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(u) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(v)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash- generating unit in prior
years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(v) Provisions (Cont’d)
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Provision for completed properties held for sale

and properties for future development and under
development for sale

As explained in note 3(h), the Group’s completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development and
under development for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the subject properties, the
Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of
completion in case for properties for future development and
under development for sale, and the costs to be incurred in
selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (Cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(1)

(i)

(i)

Provision for completed properties held for sale

and properties for future development and under
development for sale (Cont’d)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and
this may result in provision for completed properties held
for sale and properties for future development and under
development for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the reporting date. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Impairment losses on prepaid project costs

The Group prepaid land and construction costs for certain
projects located on the lands which the Group has not
obtained title documents of the land use rights. The Group is
in the process of obtaining title documents of these land use
rights. Should the title documents of these land use rights
cannot be obtained subsequently, certain prepaid costs
may not be recoverable. The Group provides for impairment
losses for the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation.
The Group’s estimates may be inaccurate and any change in
the estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of loans
and receivables and provides for impairment losses if the
balances are not fully recoverable. The assessments involve
estimation on the recoverability of these balances. The
Group’s estimates may be inaccurate and any change in
estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B4 85 ¥ 3% B R
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)
4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (Cont’d) 4. BRHE R EE(E5 (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) A THBREZEZETERR (&)
(iv) Estimated income taxes (including LAT) and deferred (iv) BETETE# (B B 1+ 5 (E

taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the PRC.
Significant estimates are required in determining the amount
of the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the
related tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC,
and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation taxes
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation and its
related taxes. The Group recognised these land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according to
the understanding of the tax rules. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the cost of sales
and deferred tax provision in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for revaluation of
investment properties and depreciation allowances in
excess of related depreciation in the PRC and any change in
estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.
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4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)
(v) Derivative financial instruments

The fair values calculated on the basis of well- established
valuation techniques using current market parameters are
theoretical values applicable at a given reporting date, and
hence can only be used as an indicator of value realisable
in a future sale. These techniques involve uncertainties
and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and
judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future
cash flows, future expected loss and other factors. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and
the resulting fair values. Derived fair value estimates cannot
necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and, in many cases, could not be realised in an
immediate sale of the instruments.

(vi) Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 17 to the financial statements,
investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent firm of professional
surveyors after taking into consideration the net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based
on a method of valuation which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

(vii) Financial guarantee contracts

Details of guarantees provided by the Group are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements. Based on expectations
at the reporting date, the directors consider that it is more
likely than not that such an amount will not be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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4. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (Cont’d) 4. BRHE R EE(E5 (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) EETHBEEZZETERE (&)

(vii)Estimated impairment of trade receivables (vili) JE Y& B 3K 87 1 & et 1B
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the EAEREFEAERNDERERBE
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash AREBEeEEREGHTAKBELRE -
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as BEEBSENIREERTEE  BEMY
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the ‘;Jrﬂipkiﬁi,m;;ﬁzimgﬁ@%/\@ﬂ
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at RFHE7IRENESETE - MAKIR
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the SRhENBERSHERE ;Hﬂ9~ Al 7] &E
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material EXEAXREER-

impairment loss may arise.

5. Financial Instruments 5. @ T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) TRMIAENDE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Financial assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁé
Trading securities EEEH 2,037 2,130
Loans and receivables B R
(including bank and cash balances) (BREROEBESEH) 369,542 66,217
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKATTENSRARE 2,555,562 2,394,314
(b) Financial risk management (b) B4 75 & b B 2=
(i) Foreign currency risk () SN fE

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

All the Group's revenue-generating activities were
transacted in RMB. Exposure to foreign currency
risks is mainly attributable to bank deposits, bank and
other borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. Foreign currency risk is measured
by employing sensitivity analysis, taking into account
current and anticipated exposures.

$$I%%mﬁ EEMBER
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that had the Hong
Kong Dollars exchange rate (versus RMB) increased/
decreased by 5% (2012: 5%), with all other variables
remaining constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB43,306,000 (2012: the Group's loss after tax
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB22,151,000).

Credit risk

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has a defined credit policy. In addition, the
Group reviews the ageing of its individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on pledged deposits, bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings. The Group has arranged
bank financing for certain purchasers of properties and
provided guarantees to certain former subsidiaries,
its tenant and business associates. Details of these
guarantees are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management based on the Group’s
internal guidelines on liquidity requirement, including
raising loans to cover the expected cash demand, and
obtaining credit lines, subject to approval by the Board.
The Group’s objective is to strike a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of banking facility and other borrowings. The Group
financed its operations and investment activities with
internally generated cash flows, balanced with proceeds
from the line of credit obtain from banks. There has
been no default on repayment of interest and/or bank
borrowings as at year end or at any time during the year.
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)
(ifi) Ligquidity risk (Cont’d)
The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities (excluding receipts in
advance), which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

Trade and other payables,
and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Bank and other borrowings

Total

Trade and other payables,
and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Bank and other borrowings

Total

5. @R TR (&)
(b) HEEBREE (&)
(i) FTE R ()

TRETAKEZITESRE
B(TEFRBAREFR) R HRE A
ZHBTAKNIME  DHREELH
AFBRBESRE (BREEAGH
MEREFFE 2R B LB F
B X QRN HRE BB E
AAE)ARAEEA]EREERZ
=P AHEFE:

2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRFTBRER

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

1B/ 1ENEBR 28N LR
FREX yivE HR5E 564 L ok REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®Tr AR®Tn AR%ETR ARETR ARET:R

&S Ht RN
BRRERER 538,483 - - - 538,483 538,483
HERAMEZES 8,780 - - - 8,780 8,780
ROREMEE 1,863,299 30,000 45,000 70,000 2,008,299 2,008,299
A 2,410,562 30,000 45,000 70,000 2555562 2,555,562
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SNRFTRRER

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

1A 1EREE  2ENER
% REX PRE NS 58N £ i RERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:

RS E R

BRRHERER 561,558 - - - 561,558 561,558
BEREMES 28,934 - - - 28,934 28,934
BOREMEE 1,808,822 - - - 1,808,822 1,808,822
a5 2,394,314 - - - 2304314 2,394,314

The above table excluded all non-cash settled

contractual liabilities.

EXRTREMERREREREZE
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(iv) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s
intention to keep its borrowings at floating interest rate
with an aim to reflect market costs of funding. It is this
reason that cost of specific borrowings financing the
Group’s development projects would be capitalised at a
rate reflecting market conditions. The Group’s effect on
changes in interest rate is considered immaterial to the
Group’s profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% (2012: 1%) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before tax for the year
by approximately RMB3,018,000 (2012: decrease/
increase the Group’s profit after tax by approximately
RMB8,923,000).

(c) Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy which has 3
levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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5. Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 5. @I A (&)
(c) Fair values (Cont’d) (c) A& (&)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December MR2013F12A31HHN AR BERE K
2018: ZHE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2E $E3E Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥ TR

Assets BE
Trading securities BEERSH
— Listed -8 tm 2,037 - - 2,037
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December MR2012F12A31EM A A EERE &
2012: R
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%1 Sl FEIE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT
Assets BE
Trading securities BEBEZES
- Listed =2 5y 2,130 - - 2,130
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6. Turnover 6. EXEH
The principal activities of the Group are property development AEBENEZEXEBRERREEYER
and property leasing in the PRC. ERYEMRE-

EEBINAFEEARERNIHEEY XK
ARBEEBARERERKA (BHKE
ERLEMBEERRRERTN) - AF
ER EREXERIANEETZRENH

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, rental
income and management fee income recognised during the year,
net of business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts
allowed. The amount of each significant category of revenue

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: HeREMAT:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETF T
Sales of properties HEME 174,171 278,431
Rental income e WA 43,430 40,678
Management fee income EEBUWA 9,229 5,560
226,830 324,669
7. Other Net Income 7. HibWg A FE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBTTT
Advertising income BEKA 410 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant PEWE BB REE2 K=
and equipment 431 136
Interest income F B A 8,506 52
Net exchange gain [E 5 U255 58 17,532 544
Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gainon EEBFHEEBERAER
trading securities (B18) 5 (93) 241
Net utilities expenses related to property  MEREXZHKHE s ALE A
leasing business X (3,163) (2,114)
Reversal of impairment on trade and other 1 5] & U BR 7% K2 E fth JiE Uk 3R 08 6 B
receivables 2,086 62,822
Reversal of overprovision of accruals HOBRRERBERE 12,136 68,673
Others Hit 2,953 4,419
40,798 134,773
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8. Segment Information

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property development — this segment develops and sells office
premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all the
Group’s property development activities are carried out in the

PRC.

Property leasing — this segment leases retail properties to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group’s entire
investment property portfolio is located in the PRC.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business segment requires different
marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those of the Group. Segment profit or loss do not
include finance costs, change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments and corporate income and expenses. Segment
assets include all current and non-current assets with the
exception of trading securities, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all trade and other
payables, and accruals, receipts in advance and rental and other
deposits.

8.
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8. Segment Information (Cont’d) PEER (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, EREHRE I HER BEEREBEN
assets and liabilities &#
Property Property
development leasing Total
L ER MERE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TR AR%Tx
For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z2013F12A31B LEE
Revenue from external customers VSIS ON 174,171 52,659 226,830
Segment (loss)/profit DE(EE) /i F (292,201) 82,338 (209,863)
Other information: HER:
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE  BE &R E 2 WS
equipment / (B#E) 608 (177) 431
Reversal of overprovision of accruals BOEREA CHBEREE 12,136 = 12,136
Depreciation E (1,320) (812) (2,132)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables &g B 2k K £ & Uk BR 2R E
g (99,282) = (99,282)
Increase in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ Q7 EHE 0 - 49,210 49,210
Impairment loss on inventories FEZRERER (57,000) - (57,000)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB QMK - 100 100
Provision for legal obligation EE B RGBS (36,600) - (36,600)
Advertising and commission expenses EERA£XH (87,370) - (87,370)
Additions to segment non-current assets HEELHNFERBDEE 1,407 143 1,550
At 31 December 2013 ®2013%12831H
Segment assets oA E 2,141,400 1,132,256 3,273,656
Segment liabilities DEAEE 1,584,975 21,358 1,606,333
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8. Segment Information (Cont’d)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
Revenue from external customers

Segment profit

Other information:

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of overprovision of accruals

Depreciation

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Impairment loss on inventories

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Provision for impairment on prepaid land
cost

Additions to segment non-current assets

At 31 December 2012
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

8. AEEH (

&)

FHAREMER BEREEMN

&R (#])
Property Property
development leasing Total
MERE MEMEE A&
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTT
B ZE2012F12A31A L EE
HNRE P IA 278,431 46,238 324,669
5 EB & T 116,807 325,405 442,212
H &R -
HEME B REE 2K
= 136 = 136
BOTERERA CBERE 68,673 = 68,673
e (2,032) (683) (2,715)
JE W BR SR B% HL A B AR SR
VERENEi=! (2,160) = (2,160)
WEYERN R BRI
= 293,570 293,570
FEZRESE (48,000) - (48,000)
L EME A A& W 17,719 = 17,719
TEfT L Hb PR AN BB B 18
(27,540) = (27,540)
S ESHNIERBDEE 3,051 3,247 6,298
M2012F12A31H
DEEE 1,685,721 1,090,997 2,776,718
HEBE 544,809 49,080 593,889
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8. Segment Information (Cont’d)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

(Loss)/Profit

Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments

Other net income
Depreciation and amortisation
Corporate finance costs

Change in fair value of derivative financial

instruments
Other corporate expenses

Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments
Trading securities

Deferred tax assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities of reportable segments
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Geographical information

All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 were attributable to customers
based in the PRC. In addition, majority of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no

geographical analysis is presented.

Revenue from major customers

oEHER (&)
BRETHERZ EEREBNYER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
(B8B), &=
BWEDE (EE), wFEE (209,863) 442 212
H AU A FEE 28,607 1,570
WrE R (290) (54)
ERBE KA (211,070) (185,982)
MEEMITERARBEES
- 8
HEhERAE (149,806) (247,711)
BRI E (B8B) %7 (542,422) 10,043
BE
HARMEDHEERTE 3,273,656 2,776,718
BEEEH 2,037 2,130
RERIBEE 9,262 3,505
REDENLEEE 674,394 593,178
REBEE 3,959,349 3,375,531
=R
ARESHAaBERE 1,606,333 593,889
Eﬂﬁﬂfﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 31,432 19,431
FERIBAE 192,666 176,250
Ao BN XEE 1,670,837 1,815,241
ReEBaE 3,501,268 2,604,811
i E &R
AREBREZE2013F K2012F12H31H
FEEMEFEEENERAYEBER

During the year, revenue derived from the Group’s largest
customer which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue amounted to approximately RMB27,791,000 (2012:
RMB118,260,000). This revenue is attributable to the property

development segment.
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REMES N AREBBAE D IER
BEEHURNTE - At X ARZ5HE
DT °
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FRN AEEREFATEFPHEA
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9. Finance Costs 9. BE KA
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ARSFARAEIEEMIERIT
repayable within five years ERKREMEERNS 307,096 273,695
Interest on bank and other loans not wholly TAERSFREELEED
repayable within five years RITERKEMEER S 6,120 -
Total borrowing costs BB A BRE 313,216 273,695
Less: Amount capitalised WERNLEE (102,146) (87,713)
211,070 185,982
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at interest rates BEKRAED D REFFEN F6.69%%E
ranging from 6.69% to 24% per annum (2012: 5.84% to 6.32% 24% (20124 : F F| £5.84%%6.32% )
per annum). TAEARAL -
10.Income Tax (Expense)/Credit 10.FiE8 (BX) &R
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and (a) srefEmakEMmrEBERANR
other comprehensive income: T8 -
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Current tax B HA B 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax FREPEMEE
— Provision for the year —F ARG - (5,238)
— Overprovision in prior years —EFEBEREE 5,235 85,319
5,235 80,081
LAT A g E R
— Provision for the year —F ARG (30,667) (4,524)
— Overprovision in prior years —LEFEBEREE - 37,298
(30,667) 32,774
(25,432) 112,855
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TRER CELERER
differences (10,659) (84,334)
Effect of changes in tax rate on opening 7ot 2 5 B ¥9 B AR RE A TE A B
deferred tax balances Eob -2 - 756
(10,659) (83,578)
(36,091) 29,277
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

10.Income Tax (Expense)/Credit (Cont’d)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income: (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong.

No provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as the Group incurred a tax loss
in current year. (2012: The provision for the PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on a statutory rate of 25% of the
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations in the PRC).

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditure including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property

development expenditure.

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

10.F7 5% (BxX) K& (&)

(@)

meBRahEtE2ERERANK
B (%)

REREREREBHBRES
(IRBERAERS ) R RA -
AEBBAGMHASHERRBER
RESNEAAEYH KMEFE -
HRAEE Y ENEBRES 2 A5
FERRTLEm M) SR R & B 75 ¥Rk I 4%
LEE ST IR B

HE2013F12A31BLEFE - BR
AEBRFRELETBEEE  BUNE
EUBHRERIN BB EEHE
REE (012F : F R EMERE
fh Th iR RR R B AB B B9 P15 0 48 Al IR 4R
171l 7 TE 8925 9% JIE =R Bt i A1) ) 7E bb 3

HE) o

AEBEHERMBEROMEAZ L
B{EIE 1R IA30% E60%H) R 1 T KK
MBI ER RBEEEMAG
TR ER TR EMEME R
AAHAS (B EAEEEX
H-BERAEFAENERERAX)

o A
Al &= °
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10.Income Tax (Expense)/Credit (Cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax and accounting (loss)/

profit at applicable tax rate:

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax
calculated at 25% (2012: 25%) in
Shenzhen

Effect of changes in tax rate on opening
deferred tax balances

Tax effect on LAT deductible for calculation
of income tax purpose

Tax effect on reversal of LAT for calculation
in prior years

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of prior year’ tax losses utilised
in current year

LAT

Reversal of LAT provided in prior years

Overprovision in prior years
Others

Income tax expense/(credit)

10.FFr 8% (BAX) K% (&)

b RERAMEFTENMEHEG S
(B18), B HH %K.
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥T T
BRBLAT (E518) 5 F (542,422) 10,043
BRI T E25% (20124 :
25% ) st E W R T AT
(BR) &HrEERIE (135,606) 2,510
RSB ERIIEERIE
HEHRHEE - (756)
A 1E FT 15 B4 0080 A9 R B 4 3
BEMHRIBLE (7,667) (1,131)
HENTFEERRE LA
MELNHIBLE - 9,325
BA R ANTIEZ 2 (61,570) (106,143)
AR S B B IR 2 2 164,526 183,959
RFUAMERAE ARG
EENHIEYE 50,818 2,520
Kiﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁmuﬁirﬁ
RMIEEENHIEYE 158 =
AR 3B E R 30,667 4,524
NEFERENFE LT
(B T [l - (37,298)
LA F REBEEE (5,235) (85,319)
HAh - (1,468)
FEHHY (KR) 36,091 (29,277)
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11.(Loss)/Profit and Total Comprehensive

(Expense)/Income for the year

Depreciation
Less: Amount capitalised

Auditor’s remuneration:
— Current year
— Other services

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments:

— Salaries, bonus and allowances
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions
— Equity-settled share-based payment

— Quarter expenses

Less: Amount capitalised

Operating lease charges in respect of office
premises

Cost of inventories sold

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss on prepaid land costs

Direct outgoings (note)

Note:

Direct outgoings represent management fee expenses.

104  Sun Century Group Limited AfBtt 42 =B AR A &

M.AEE (FE) BAREE

(X)W EE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
e 2,573 2,795
DA e (151) (26)
2,422 2,769
BRI EN &
—ARFEE 1,140 1,136
—H AR % 40 429
1,180 1,565
BTIXABEEEHNE:
—IT&- 2o MER 32,732 17,333
—RIR@FFT &I H 5K 3,709 2,106
—UESEE RN AERD
3% 1,564 =
- BEEH 381 L
38,386 19,439
Do v ok (4,116) (2,109)
34,270 17,330
WMABEZIRETHEER
4,680 2,365
FEHEKAN 123,992 128,079
FE U BR T At JlE R 2 R B B 18
223,696 256,542
A LKA 2 BB BB = 27,540
BERX (#iE) 4,048 1,104
B 3E -
HERYETEERY -
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12.Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
The emoluments of each director are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013

Name of director EEpg
Executive directors HITEE
Chau Cheok Wa [l
Cheng Mei Ching Bxie
Qiu Bin ity
Yeung So Lai BEE
Yeung So Mui e

Independient non-executive directors B HHTEE

Lo Wai Tung John EEE
Tou Kin Chuen HEE
Wu Kam Fun HRE
Total @t

NREEZREENE

REFEMaWT:

B E2013F12A31ALFE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Quarter
Fees allowances bonus contributions  expenses Total
RIKEA
e HeREE BEA B 5 EEER EHY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®Tr AR¥TR ARETR AR®T:
103 - - - 108
96 - - - 101
96 991 - 12 - 1,099
96 699 167 12 381 1,355
96 - - 5 - 101
95 - - - - 95
95 - - - - 95
95 - - - - 95
772 1,690 167 39 381 3,049
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12.Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2012

NREEZREENE (&)

BZE2012F12831BLEE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
BRRER
Name of director EXH% wE  FEloRH EE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T ARET T AR
Executive directors WITES
Chau Cheok Wa ElcES 98 - 4 102
Zeng Yunshu (Note (a)) LEE (fiE() - - ) 2
Cheng Mei Ching gxiz 98 - 4 102
Lee Chi Shing Caesar (Note (b)) FEK (H3Eb) 65 = 2 67
Leung Ming Ho (Note (b)) 2eaE (kb)) 57 = 2 59
Qiu Bin (Note (c)) B (FHEE(c)) 57 919 13 989
Yeung So Lai IPES 98 836 9 943
Yeung So Mui S 106 - 4 110
Independent non-executive directors B IFHITES
Cheung Kwok Yu (Note (a)) KB (FiizE) 41 = = 41
Cheung Ngai Lam (Note (a)) wRM (M) 51 = = 51
Li Jun (Note (a)) ZIE (M () 51 - - 51
Lo Wai Tung John (Note (d)) E&R (M) 22 - - 22
Lui Man Wah (Note (b)) aXE (FF(D) 33 - - 33
Tou Kin Chuen (Note (e)) i (MEe) 66 - - 66
Wu Kam Fun (note (e)) HHiRE) (FTsEe) 66 - - 66
Total st 909 1,755 40 2,704
Note: BT & -

a) retired on 1 June 2012 a) M20129F6A1HEE

( (

(b)  resigned on 31 July 2012 (b) 201247 A31 A BT

() appointed on 19 June 2012 (c) M2012F6H19REZ (T
(d)  appointed on 10 October 2012 (d) M2012F10A10BEEE
(e)  appointed on 26 April 2012 (e) M2012F4H26 R EZ (T
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12.Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments (Cont'd) 12.ZEERESEME (&)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or WERZHFEEENAFERENRBERE
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. FRME -

AEBRAFERERESHNE AL
2ZEBEE (2012F :2%) - HEME&EH N £
XM e Eer3BE E=2013F12A31H 1

The five highest individuals in the Group during the year included
2 (2012: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

3 individuals for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out FENMSBENOT
below:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Salaries and allowances e KOERA 1,445 1,533
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBFIET B K 35 22
Equity-settled share-based payments R EERRND A
BB e 1,104 =
2,584 1,555

The emoluments of the remaining 3 individuals with the highest

Hep3zM e &= A LB < %6 E 0

emolument is within the following band: ™
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EEHE BEHE
2013 2012
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ £1,000,000/% 7T 1 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 8 LE

2,000,000/ 7T 2 =

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any

of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

AEER AEEREATAEZNES
FHA LTINS - (FEAREIRFNA
N 5% [ 30 A0 A AR £R [ B Y 5 B oK B
fHfE -
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13.(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the 13. A RATHEEAEMN (BER) EF
Company
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the ARABHEE AEELGE (BB),/EH e
Company includes a loss of approximately RMB199,267,000 EHARM199,267,0007T &) &8 (2012
(2012: RMB223,423,000) which has been dealt with in the F: AR#223,423,0007T) » ZEEE R
financial statements of the Company. RAGH I EmRPRRIE -
14.Dividends 14.[ 2
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend EFTUEEZKRNEZE2013F12H31
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). HiIEFERAKRE (20125F - &) -
15.(Loss)/Earnings Per Share 15. 8% (BR) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share ARBHBEABESREARE S (B
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the B) /BAZTEEENT

following data:

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ETTT

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to RAmEBAFERENL (BB
owners of the Company and (loss)/earnings & %] & gt 5T Z T AL A K #58
for the purpose of basic and diluted (loss)/ (E#8) B rER 2 (EE)
earnings per share S B (578,513) 39,320

Number of shares

iR B E
2013 2012
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREAREE (FB)
shares for the purpose of basic and B Az Emkz NiEFHE
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 1,427,753,960 642,767,406
The Company’s outstanding share options and warrants had no HARRRERRRERE 2ITEERAR
dilutive effect on (loss)/earnings per share upon deemed exercise ARH AT ES  AEEZERITE
during the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as RN N R AR A AR R B E2013
the exercise price of the share options and warrents were higher F 201212 A31H I EMEFERNTT
than the average market price of the Company’s shares. FERENTR (BE) RANELEE
2
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Property, plant and equipment
At cost

At 1 January 2012
Reclassification
Additions

Disposal

Written off

Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Additions

Disposal

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2012
Reclassification

Charge for the year
Disposal

Written back

Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Charge for the year

Disposal

At 31 December 2013

Carrying values

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

16.Property, Plant And Equipment

ME - BERSZE
A
M20124F1 18
Epio |
RNE
L&
1 88

HE—FHHEBARE

MR2012F12 A31H &
2013%F1 A1H

NE

k=

M2013%F12H31H

E-S -
®2012%F1 818
EFOE
KEERE
e
Hh 84
& —fHHB AR

R2012%12A31H &
20131 H1H

REFHE

HE

M2013%F12H31H

BREE
M2013%F12H31H

MR20129F12H31H

16.M1% HMERRE
Furniture

Leashold and Motor
improvements fixture vehicles Total
HELE KERKE "E At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BTRT ARETRE ARBTR
2,749 5,257 4,889 12,895
(704) 704 - -
- 1,009 5,896 6,905
- (444) (351) (795)
(1,895) - - (1,895)
- (21) - 21)
150 6,505 10,434 17,089
= 556 996 1,552
(150) (1,496) (4,296) (5,942)
T o d597 I Ny LS el
2,531 2,820 3,708 9,059
(677) 577 - -
7 1,407 1,381 2,795
- (386) (156) (542)
(1,895) - = (1,895)
- (4) = (4)
66 4,414 4,933 9,418
6 979 1,588 20513
(72) (1,237) (3,887) (5,196)
= 4,156 2,634 6,790
- 1,409 4,500 5,909
84 2,091 5,501 7,676
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17.Investment Properties

At 1 January M1 H1R
Additions NE
Increase in fair value NI EEMN
At 31 December M®12H31H

(@)

All of the Group’s investment properties held under
operating lease for rental purposes are measured using the
fair value model. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012
by an independent firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals
Limited and Ascent Partners Transaction Services Limited
respectively, who have among their staff Fellows of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis calculated by reference to the net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying amounts
are analysed as follows:

In Shenzhen, PRC BRI
— Medium-term lease —FHE

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

17.REY

(@)

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
1,080,000 780,000
790 6,430
49,210 293,570
1,130,000 1,080,000

AEEREERNOFIERERR ZA
EREYMEHURARERAGE A
EELEMEAE2013F12A318 &
2012F 12831 E % 5 A # B 1%
HEMENCE REEATHEHRD
ERRNEMECEFSEREENTE
SRR TR SEBR A EER AR
ERMABERSREBERRFRER
FmEEELEHSRAFELH X
AEENERKRAER-

AREEREYEREREED I

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
1,130,000 1,080,000
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17.Investment Properties (Cont’d) 17.EW% (1E)

(c) The Group leases out certain investment properties under ) AEEREBELLEHEHES TIRE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period WE-BEZSHONVTHEP—F
of one to thirteen years, with an option to renew the lease +=FRNZEETEEZEER miE
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None BFFT A R SR I P EHT 157 - 20134
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31 12A310  ZEHEHTEERHA
December 2013. e
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under AEERBENTHBBRKLCERENT
noncancellable operating leases from investment properties EMETBERENNREMEERIER
are receivable as follows: REOON

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Within one year 1FR 38,669 38,726
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2F E5F

(EEMFBREER) 140,037 125,960

After five years 51 159,665 174,778

338,371 339,464

(d) At 31 December 2013 and 2012, all investment properties (d) M2013K&2012412H31H ' A& E
of the Group were pledged against certain bank and other FIBIREMECERTAEEE TR
borrowings granted to the Group and details of which are ThkEMBEFEBR  BHEFES
set out in note 26(d) to the financial statements. 7 BA 75 2k MY 51 26(d) ©

(e) Details of the Group’s investment properties and information (e) R2013F12A31H AEBKEY
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are EI2HABRBBEARESH AR
as follows: T:

Fair value

RMB’000

(Level 3)

ARE

AR TR

(B=8H)

All investment properites FrBIRE Y 1,130,000

There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy FATERNABERHE ZENER
during the year. Hi5 o
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17.Investment Properties (Cont’d)
(e) (Cont’d)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of

investment properties:

Valuation technique Key input

FRBAE

EER

17.8EM%E (&)
(e) (&)
BEREMEE-—BALEHEZE
-

Significant
unobservable inputs

TABECERENR

All Investment Income approach

Income approach takes into the account of net rental

Term yield and reversion

properties income of the properties derived from the existing yield is 4.5% and 5%

leases and/or achievable in the existing market respectively.
with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then
capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

FrERENRE WAE WNEDEHREBANEUREREMER /SEH HEUEERESK
BmisLaWBcBeWAFE BEREBAEE HmEXH5A45%K
ZEBUANENERERSE BEEEHETUNE 5%

AMERBER - EEEAN L XETME.

The fair value measurement of the investment properties
determined by using income approach is negatively
correlated to the term yield and reversion yield. A slight
increase in term yield and reversion yield used would result
in a significant decrease in fair value measurement of the

properties. vice versa.

18.Inventories

Properties for future development and under
development for sale
Completed properties held for sale

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

RABRNEBEEZREMERAESR
ENERREaRRERKEXR28
E R o B Yot = I 18 57 I o R B O

BESEFMPELAABIFEBER

Do R Z IR e

18. 7 &
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
HH &R R R &

BRPYE 1,855,454 1,462,201
BEHENBE R IYME - 123,455
1,855,454 1,585,656
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18.Inventories (Cont’d)

(@)

The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in
properties for future development and under development
for sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows:

FE
—RHAHEE

In PRC
— Long leases

Included above are amounts totalled approximately
RMB15,288,000 (2012: RMB15,288,000) representing
lease payment for land use rights of certain pieces of land
in the PRC. The Group is in the process of applying for the
land use right certificates subject to the approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

Based on the legal opinion obtained, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is the beneficial
owner of the land use rights and is entitled to lawfully and
validly use these land use rights.

The amount of properties for future development and under
development for sale expected to be recovered after more
than one year is analysed as follows:

B R 2R 3
RERDYE

Properties for future development and
under development for sale

Apart from the above, all inventories are expected to be
recovered within one year.

At 31 December 2012, certain inventories were pledged
against bank loans granted to the Group and details of
which are set out in note 26(d) to the financial statements.

18.7E (&)

(@)

BRAERLENRKAZRERTY
ERFELHENDRIYEANEE

BB EEA T :
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE  ARET
102,040 161,009

PR EBREAENDARE
15,288,0007T (20125 : AR ¥
15,288,0007t) © Bl & B # B & T 18
T Hb A b F AR TR & R IE - A
B F R b (E MR - MR AR RS
B MR L o

RIFEFESNERESR ARAFES
RREEER T HERENERESR
A W EESEAMERZFT LML
FtE-

TEHE@IFA RS AR MHEE
RRFAZERERPYENSES T
T

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
213,258 188,959

B bR gh - B 1 S T A A
ERER -

R2012F12A831H ETFEHRA
EREEERBITERNEM S 5
BB B 1S 3R R B 5E26(d) ©
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Trade receivables (note(a))
Other receivables (note(b))
Loans and advances (note(c))
Prepaid land costs (note(d))
Prepayments and deposits
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19.Trade and Other Receivables

BNREEE

(@) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from leasing and sales

of properties. Rental receivables from tenants are due on
presentation of invoices and no credit terms for sales of
properties unless otherwise specified in the underlying
agreements with the purchasers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice
date for property leasing and delivery date for property
sales, is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0Z31E A
Over 1 year HBim1F

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past
due but not impaired is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0Z3fE A
Over 1 year HBiE1E

The above receivables relate to a number of independent
purchasers and tenants. In respect of the trade receivables
arose from sales of properties, the directors of the Company
consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
allowance was made against these past due receivables.
Regarding the rental receivables, rental deposits were held
as collateral over the balances. As such, the directors
consider that no allowance for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances.

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

FEU R (MiFE(a))
Hitb Uk (FifaE(o))
ER kg (M)
B LA (M EE(d))

19. F& U B 5K 32 L £t BB W =K

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
553 8,321

6,618 11,611
30,820 31,062
80,870 38,000
506,275 592,347
625,136 681,341

(@ BUEAREITEXRAMERERHE-

RUEFPHEESNEARERIE Y
XHEYEBEERR BEREMH
ek > B M E AIER SN -

RURFIZMEHENEZ AR RY
EHEXNBHONKRESTAOT

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETT
553 6,530

- 1,791

553 8,321

B i H3E & AR B H R BR BRI
T

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
553 6,530

- 1,791

553 8,321

ERERKBESRETEIE TR
P - EMERE LN BUKERRM
FEERRRFREF ALK
[B] - B3 8 3 3% % 60 B e WO TR AF
BE-BARERES HeRETIE
RBBERRMBA Bt EFR
#3304 06 2 B 5% S R RR A R E B
e
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19.Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)

(b)

Included in other receivables is an amount due from a major
construction contractor of approximately RMB5,600,000
(2012: RMB3,500,000).

Included in loans and advances are amounts of
approximately:

RMB30,000,000 (2012: RMB30,000,000) made to a
business associate that is secured, interest-bearing at 3%
monthly basis. Since there was a charge held as collateral
over the balance, the directors consider that no allowance
for impairment is necessary in respect of the balance.

The Group’s prepaid land costs comprise the following:

() Included in prepaid land costs are amounts totalled of
approximately RMB80,870,000 (2012: RMB38,000,000)
relating to partial payment of land costs for acquisition
of land use rights in the PRC upon successfully bidding
at land auctions conducted by the PRC government and
the related preparatory costs. In view of the uncertainty
of the project costs, an impairment loss on prepaid land
costs amounting to RMB27,540,000 was recognised in
2012.

19. B AR A R E e R U =K (4]

(b)

(©)

EMERZREFBIEREREBESE
A BRI A R 5,600,0007T
(2012: A R #3,500,000) °

HTTIATHERRBRF - H
==

XBHEALTHEREBRAR
#30,000,0007T (2012F : AR ¥
30,000,0007T) & F #H i - i H E3%
B -HRERERFIEMLERK
HR WEERAEAILERER
DERIEREE

AEBERMNLHAARNBENT

() AN LTHEAANEHOAR
#80,870,0007T (20124 : AR
#38,000,0007T ) T3 3% & E 5K Th
PEFERFLIMAEEAEE L
Hh {55 FA 1 2 A A9 BE 9 - A AR
LARABREAE N E A - ERIEE K
AEETHBEEZ  REMN T
AR A R ¥27,540,0007T B3 B
BEEER2012F R -
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20.Trading Securities

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Listed securities, outside Hong Kong, at fair ~ &R ETMEHEZ R AE)

value

The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted market
bid prices.

21.Pledged Deposits

(@ Included in pledged deposits are:

() Deposits of approximately RMB200,000 (2012:
RMB287,000) pledged with certain banks as guarantee
deposits for mortgage loan facilities granted by the
banks to purchasers of the Group’s properties.

(i) Deposits of approximately RMB314,177,000 (2012:
RMB868,000) pledged with banks securing the Group’s
bank loans as set out in note 26(d).

(b) The pledged deposits are denominated in RMB. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

(c) At 31 December 2013, the pledged deposits are subjected

to floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.44% (2012: 0%
to 0.5%) per annum.
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2,037 2,130

2,037 2,130

EREAHA R E RS EAE DR
B H

21.EBER

(@)

AREBEERFREIE:

() &£ 4 ARM®200,0007T (2012
F: AR¥287,00070) 2 F %
EAETRIBRTAEEME
BEHNZBERREERREIR
SHEAZFRT

(i) BN F26(d)WIRITE
HMERTFRITINABARKE
314,177,0007C (20125 : AR
#868,0007T ) K17 5K °

IR HUAA RIEEHE - AR 38
585 788 = o B 1 B 5 I8 (R ) 2
[ - 5 R (IR o

M2013%F 128310 I 1F IR F
A ZE AN F0%ZE0.44% (20124 : 0%
Z0.5% )R FENFI KRB -



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

22.Bank and Cash Balances

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and cash balances

are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
United States Dollars
Hong Kong Dollars

ARH#
X7

BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the

PRC'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

At 31 December 2013, bank balances of approximately
RMB17,064,000 (2012: RMB13,712,000) are subjected to
floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.35% (2012: 0% to

0.50%) per annum.

23.Trade and Other Payables, and Accruals

Trade payables
Other creditors and accrued charges

& 1 BR 3K

Hi RN K LA E B

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

0 - 3 months or on demand

OE3MEA HREK

2.RITRESEH
ARBRITRAS KB HRE LTS
KA

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARKETTT
14,363 13,269

74 74

2,737 725
17,174 14,068

AR N 78 38 <7 o B O E B IR 1
{5 o A5 - EIE R N EEIRARTE

MR2013F 12831 B RITE&EHH A
R #17,064,0007T (2012F : AR %
13,712,000 B EF XN F0% =
0.35% (20124 : 0% ZE0.50% ) &1 ;% 8 7
KEHE o

23.BNRM - HitENRRBAREAN

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

46,313 48,580

492,170 512,978

538,483 561,558
FEfER R AR D AT AT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

46,313 48,580
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24.Receipts in Advance 24. FA W AR X
Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds received BREFERASEEEEMERES
from purchasers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales WEHREHEMSHREEAEEREME
of properties and prepaid rental from tenants of the Group’s M WERTERES - T A TBUERRTE
investment properties. All receipts in advance are expected to be I FNEEE -

settled within one year.

25.Rental and Other Deposits B HEREMEZES
Included in rental and other deposits were approximately HEREMEZePBIE—SBHEMF
RMB8,780,000 (2012: RMB28,934,000) which are expected to BEE RN ARS,780,0007T K 5K 1H
be settled after more than one year. (20124 : AR ™28,934,0007T) °
26.Bank and Other Borrowings 26.8RITRHEMEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥EF T
Bank loans IRITE X
- Secured —G5EH 310,440 890,600
- Unsecured — | - -
310,440 890,600
Other loans HEhE R
- Secured — B & 290,000 32,661
— Unsecured — A 1,407,859 880,561
1,697,859 913,222
2,008,299 1,803,822
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: (a)

Bank and other loans on demand or within
one year

In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive
After the five years

Less: Amount due within one year
(shown under current liabilities)

Amount due after one year

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars
RMB

26.RITREMEE (&)

EEENRITREMEENDT

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

RITREMERFERNES
1,863,299 1,803,822
F24F 30,000 =
FEIESF(SFELF) 45,000 =
5F 1% 70,000 =
145,000 =
2,008,299 1,803,822

B R —F R ERUE
B ERBEE) (1,863,299) (1,803,822)
e —F 1% B B 308 145,000 =

NI EREEHE:

(b) AEERTREMEEHREETIIA

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBFIT

BT 868,859 443,741
AR 1,139,440 1,360,081
2,008,299 1,803,822
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26.Bank and Other Borrowings (Cont’d) 26.BITREMEE (&)
(c) The following table details the interest rate profile of the () THRFFMAKERITRAMEERR
Group’s bank and other borrowings at the reporting date: &= B EIRF AR
2013 2012
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAR B A=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEREEE:
Bank and other loans RIT R EH M E % 2.00-24.00 1,407,859 2.00-36.00 908,222

Variable rate borrowings: FEHAREE:

Bank and other loans AT I H At B 3K 5.88-8.515 600,440 5.84-6.35 895,600

(d) At 31 December 2013, the Group’s asset pledged as (d) R2013%F12A31H EAEERTT

security for the Group’s bank and other borrowing are as FEMEEMBERANRNEBEEN

follows: T

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETFT

Investment properties BREDE 1,130,000 1,080,000

Inventories S - 1,273,242

Pledged deposits R UIRER 314,377 1,155

1,444,377 2,354,397

At 31 December 2012, included in bank and other M2012%F12A318  RIT R EMEBEESR

borrowings are certain loans amounted to approximately FHAAARATESEEZRAER,

RMB440,600,000 guaranteed by ex-director of the REBLEERNETERHARKE
Company, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and/or Mr. Zeng Sheng. 440,600,0007T °
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27.Deferred Tax 27 BB IE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised REET BRI R AERIELERIE (B
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E)/BEIIRFREFHNT

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation Temporary

allowances differences

in excess arising from
of related LAT Capitalisation Total
Revaluation  depreciation Total deferred BA of interest  deferred tax
of investment BE  tax liabilities HE L expenses assets

properties BRTEN ELBE BERH BRIH ELHE
EffRENE  HERHE BEEE ORER AEXH EE4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARET:

At 1 January 2012 #o012%1 A1A 83,442 14,649 98,091 (4,439) (4,491) (8,924)
Effect of changes in tax rate HEganye - - - - (756) (756)
Charge to profit and loss pilli3 -t 73,393 4,766 78,159 3,302 2873 6,175
At 31 December 2012 and 2012128318 K

1 January 2013 201351 A1A 156,835 19,415 176,250 (1,131) (2,374) (3,505)
Charge/(Credt) to profit and loss nB/GHA) 3 12,303 4113 16,416 (7,667) 1,910 (5,757)
At 31 December 2013 12013%12A31R 169,138 23,528 192,666 (8,798) (464) (9,262)
At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses MR2013F12A31B8 ANEBARBAM
of approximately RMB112,048,000 (2012: RMB2,998,000) HE B AR ®112,048,0007T (2012
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset & AR¥2,098,0007T ) ] K 85 K 2t
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit F) o 2R 2R S48 A AN AT FEORD - BRI B R RR IR
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of ERIAEE st ARERBIEEIENEE
RMB112,048,000 (2012: RMB2,998,000) will expire after five AR #112,048,0007T (20124 : AR
years from the year of assessment they relate to. 2,998,0007T ) # B P iR Tl &[S 5 4F

18 12
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28.Share Capital 28. |k A<
Number of shares Share capital
g {E! B
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
k3 TER FTHL
Authorised: ETE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R E{EO. 10787t (72012
(31 December 2012: HK$0.10 F12A8318 : BREE
each) 0.10% T )M EEK 3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January 2013 and R2013F1 A1B R
at 1 January 2012 ®2012%1 818 209,030,675 1,230,671,384 20,903 12,307
(@) - 615,335,692 - 6,153
(b) - 244,299,674 - 2,443
() - (1,881,276,075) - -
(d  1,254,184,050 - 125,418 -
At 31 December 2013 and 31 #2013F12A318 2012
December 2012 F12A31H 1,463,214,725 209,030,675 146,321 20,903
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFIT

RMB equivalent AR EER 120,551 18,949

Notes: B & -

(@ On 3 January 2012, the Company raised approximately HK$6,153,000 by (a) M2012F1A3H AR AIRRARBE 20k
way of issuing 615,335,692 shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription price HHI2011F12A8H B H M R A1) o] 2% —
of HK$0.10 per share basis on one offer share for every two shares held on 8 AREEER G 2 B UER010EBIT 2 REES
December 2011, the record date of the open offer. 1B %17615,335,692% & AR E E0.01 TR 5 -

£ %496,153,000/ 7T °

(b) In January 2012, the Company issued convertible notes in the principal (b) M2012F1 A AARIM—BBULE=HFBITA
amount of HK$30 million to an independent third party. On 20 February 2012, % & %830,000,0007% 7T K AT #2 iR = % - 782012
244,299,674 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the Company on the F2H20H - AR FRERE ATTEATRRRIEAT
conversion price of HK$0.1228 per share as the note holder exercised the B e i i F - 80244,299,674 4% & I EE0.01/5
conversion rights attached to the convertible notes. TCRR 15 AN A B HR B AR0. 122878 T A 85 4 (E ¢

Te

(c) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the ) WBEARBBREN2012F6 A1 BERRIFHIAR
Company at a extraordinary general meeting on 1 June 2012, every 10 issued 2LHARMNEBRER ARARKRAR F108
and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in share capital of the Company be FREEOIBITZEBEITRAEITRGEH
consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each. AB—BREREE10B T ZKH

(d) In January 2013, the Company raised approximately HK$313,546,000 by way (d) M2013F1 A AARIHZR AR SRR A #2012

of issuing 1,254,184,050 shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of
HK$0.25 per share basis on six offer shares for every one share held on 27
December 2012, the record date of the open offer.
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28.Share Capital (Cont’d)
Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the net
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes trade and other payables, and
accruals and bank and other borrowings), less pledged deposits
and bank and cash balances.

During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2012 was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in line with
market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows:

Trade and other payables, and accruals J& < BR 3% + E 4 & - 7% &z

ERE A
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Total debt HEE

R TE R
R MR e A

Less: Pledged deposits
Less: Bank and cash balances

Net debt FREE
Total equity 4R S
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEYHERLE

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

28. 14 (%)

EXEE
AEEEREANBERZARRREAE
B ELERE N AIBBED AR
2 FERBRREREAD -

AEEBESG R ERAHEEARBETR
ARERE NERSKRRE®RER T A
HENRSEEKFERFNERMRR
R AT B K (R B 2 S 1 30 R R
RBERBENBCHERRBELHAE -

AEELFREH RS R AERER
HEARE RUAKERFRERER
maE (EeREMERAREMRENRK
BREALBITREMER) REEMT
RARIRITRIR SR

MR20135F A - 78 & [F /9 2K BE BA20124F {R
Brg HRaBHESERFE™mEE
H-BTHBHUARZLER AEEHRT
AN FRENBRESE BITHK
B RBEEATRE EEFNEERE
SHELEENRLEE-

REBESHY FaESRRLENT:

2013 2012

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®BTR ARETT
23 538,483 561,558
26 2,008,299 1,803,822
2,546,782 2,365,380

21 (314,377) (1,155)
22 (17,174) (14,068)
2,215,231 2,350,157

458,081 770,720

484% 305%

SN REARTRA - AR B AR
ST ) LA - AR B AIRR = 25%
BHRRRERE -
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29.Convertible Notes 20. TR EE

On 20 January 2012, the Company issued convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 which is interest
bearing 0.1% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
convertible notes due on 11 January 2013 is convertible into
fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.1228 per share,
subject to adjustment. The effective interest rate is 33.42%. The
convertible notes were fully converted in 2012.

Pursuant to the convertible notes agreement, if the market price
of the Company’s shares met certain predetermined mandatory
conversion price, the Company shall have the right to require the
conversion of the entire outstanding principal amount under the
convertible notes.

The convertible notes contain liability and equity components.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible notes reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at
the issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate
for a similar bond without a conversion option. The residual
amount is assigned as the equity component and is included in
shareholders’ equity.

MR2012%F1 208 AR B HITACE A
30,000,000 7T - A R B FHIKROIEX
NEFRZBBRER - #51X2013F1 A
115@JH@ZTM§%FTEH&O1228
B zmRE (I TRAB) ABRAERR
SREEC.OIB T ZH R LR x%aﬁf-ﬂrﬁ”
H/B33.42% o IR ZHEE R20126 2
Mo

RIFAT R R E R W - AR BIRD 2T
BEEATHEAREZBHIMHERE K
AAERERERARREBRE2HRE
BARETHE -

1" == §|J7% ( T@—HQ?T@%%J T2

BEBNIOAAENINETERBILE
RpRZBUER CHEMSMRELT
et o IR AR DI(ER AR B0 WAt AR
Rigm W

RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Proceeds of issue BATRTISERT 24,402
Liability component at date of issue M7 H Hﬁﬁ’]’é B (17,491)
Equity component 1 7 50 6,911
Liability component at date of issue RETHEMNBES D 17,491
Interest charged calculated at an effective BB FE33.42% H M F B FHZ
interest rate of 33.42% 388
Waiver of interest expenses HeRE T (388)
Conversion during the year FARB (17,491)
At 31 December 2012 7201212 431H -
Equity component at date of issue RETAHNERLHD 6,911
Conversion during the year FARBR (6,911)

At 31 December 2012
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30.Statement of Financial Position of the Company 30.Z< 2 3 { Bt IR R &

31.

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
Property, plant and equipment W BB k& 10 13
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RRNRE 1,801,684 1,197,901
Prepayments and deposits FENREBERES 466,328 590,765
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 2,349 296
Other payables and accruals Hth R FIEREIRE R (50,996) (8,313)
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A5 B B A R ZRIE (746,721) (799,733)
Current tax liabilities REATIEEE (4,333) (4,333)
Borrowings BE (868,859) (443,741)
NET ASSETS EEFE 599,462 532,855
Share capital f& 7 120,551 18,949
Reserves &% 478,911 513,906
TOTAL EQUITY R 599,462 532,855
Reserves 31. 77 E
(a) Group (a) =&EH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements $EIFE1%&E§@JE’J%%EEC FEEE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit mhEMEERGERIGEEREE
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated KRAZT -
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) &2 7]
Convertible
notes
Share Merger Capital reserve Accumulated
premium reserve reserve THRREE losses Total
RORE AfiFEE EXREE fie ZBEFR @it
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETE
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H 765,604 (752) 17,694 - (112,529) 670,017
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - - (223423)  (223,429)
Issue of shares B1fR A 44,897 - - - - 44,807
Equity component of convertible AR 2 2 g%
notes i 29 - - - 6,911 - 6,911
Conversion of convertible notes ~ $ R ATARE & 29 22,415 - - (6,911) - 15,504
Share option cancelled BHENRRE 32 = = (6,372) = 6,372 =
At 31 December 2012 and R2012F 12318 &
1 January 2013 20131718 832,916 (752) 11,322 - (329,580) 513,906
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (199,267)  (199,267)
Issue of shares ki 152,312 - - - - 152,312
Recognition of equity-settled BANRELER
share-based payments MR AR
kS 32 - - 11,960 - - 11,960
At 31 December 2013 2013512631 A 985,228 (752) 23,282 - (528847) 478911
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31.Reserves (Cont’d)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
Company exchange therefore.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after tax of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 3(p) to the financial statements.

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
components of each of the convertible notes issued.
Each convertible note issued are split into their liability
and equity components at initial recognition at the
fair values of each of the convertible notes, which are
determined by independent qualified professional valuer.
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31. 7% B (&)
(c) RENMERBEWH

(1)

(i)

(i)

(v)

v)

R 175 1B
BRERSBEEQTE ARAIR
MuEEREFHNESAHRSIETA
NEIRE  EREBERERAX
HBERBAAIESCATAR: B
ZREEERERE  AHEAR
A EE M B B EBBEFES
HEHET -

=Nk

BotE B R ER I E A A
Bfn EEEARRRR 5 AR
MEEZHNEZRE-

VA E ot 1
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32.Equity-settled Share-based Payments

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January
2007 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite eligible participants such as employees
and consultants of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company.
These options generally vest after six months to one year from
the date of grant and are exercisable within a period of five to
ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of the Company at a predetermined exercise
price plus a consideration of HK$10 per option holder.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed at the report date are as follows, whereby

RUBEEEERUAROHERD

NE

ARAEHA2007 461 A31 B R4 — HRMRAE
FrEBEAAREFERENRNISEG
AEENEEREMSESERK2HEE (8
BALEETEMARMNES) REAR
AN - ZERBRE—R A KL A EER
6El A Z1F 12 FE - LA M52 104 HifH
ANTTEE - RAREFF B ARN10B TIERAR
B BHRRERTHE AR fI&RE
ETEERBE-—RAATLRRK-

(a) R¥|E B A FH R VKRR R &K
a0 - 35 b B A SR IR 3T LA R

all options are settled by physical delivery of BETEYRAT:
shares:
2013
Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
AREHA BRAN ARESNER TEE
Options granted to employees BTEEMRRE:
-on 15 May 2007 —R200755A15H 515,813 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$4.78
i B ELE w6l A 10% 478% T
-on 10 October 2007 ~R2007£10A108 384,318 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$7.78
B B e w6l A 105 788
- on 12 December 2013 —-12013%12412H 17,000,000 Next day from the date of grant 10-years HK$0.398
mRLASHZA 106 0.398% 7
Options granted to third parties & 7% = 7 f1 AR
- on 15 May 2007 —12007F57150 5,004,188 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$4.78
M i B Bt n6(E A 106 4788
- on 13 February 2008 — 1200852 A13H 3,076,924  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$4.42
MR B e w6l A 106 44277
-on 12 December 2013 ~R2013%E12A128 113,000,000 Next day from the date of grant 10-years HK$0.398
MR AHEAE 106 0.398% T
138,981,243
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32.Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Cont’d)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that

existed at the report date are as follows, whereby

all options are settled by physical delivery of

shares: (Cont’d)

2012

Options granted to employees
-on 15 May 2007

-on 10 October 2007

Options granted to third parties
-on 15 May 2007

- on 13 February 2008

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at the reporting date:

RS MM
- 2007454158

—R2007%E10A108

BFE=n0RmE:
—R200745 8158

— 12008527138

Exercise period

T

15 November 2007 to 14 May 2017
2007611158 22017565 H14R

10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017
2008F4H10H £2017F10A9H

13 August 2008 to 12 August 2018
2008F8H13H £2018F8H12H

13 December 2013 to 12 December 2023
201312 H13H £2023512 4121

128  Sun Century Group Limited AfBtt 42 B AR A &

RUBEEEERUARDHERD

T3 ()

(a) R¥|E B A FH B KRR R

IS - 3B b BT A SR IR R T LA
RETENRNM: (&)

Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions life of options price
AREHE BRAL ARESNES ke
166,594  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$14.80
m i it B Bt 6(E A 106 14,8087
124,066 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$24.10
MR B w6l A 106 24.10% T
1,616,217 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$14.80
MR B EEsRefE A 106 14.80% 7T
992,701  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$13.70
R A Bt me(E A 106 13.70% 7T

2,899,578

(b) M3 E B R JE W & e R AT

H R IR RE Y HABR
Exercise price Number of option
THEE AREHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$4.78 HK$14.80 5,520,001 1,782,811
478 148087
HK$7.78 HK$24.10 384,318 124,066
7.788 T 24104 7T
HK$4.42 HK$13.70 3,076,924 992,701
4428t 13708 7T
HK$0.398 - 130,000,000 -
0.398% T =
138,981,243 2,899,578




Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

32.Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Cont’d) NRUEREERUROGBERD

(c) The number and weighted average exercised

R (&)
(c) RREHEREMEFIIITEE

prices of share options are as follows: N
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
N1 INiE T
TEE RREZHE TR RREHE
Outstanding at beginning of year — F ] % K 1T{E HK$14.82 2,899,578 HK$1.84 36,935,000
14.82/8 T 1.848 7T
Granted during the year FREH HK$0.398 130,000,000 - -
0.398% T
Adjusted during the year FARFHE N/ATE R 6,081,665 N/ATEMA (32,345,238)
Cancelled during the year FRFH - - HK$14.80  (1,690,184)
14.8078 7T
Outstanding at end of year FRARITE HK$0.681 138,981,243  HK$14.82 2,899,578
0.681% T 14,828 7T
Exercise at end of year FRA T ITME HK$0.681 138,981,243 HK$14.82 2,899,578
0.6817% T 14.8278 7T

During the year, equity-settled share-based payments
of RMB11,960,000 regarding share options granted on
13 December 2013 have been charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
under general and administrative expenses.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2013
had exercise prices of HK$0.398, HK$4.42, HK$4.78 or
HK$7.78 and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 9.55 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 1,690,184
share options granted on 15 May 2007 were cancelled.
Accordingly, the fair value on grant date of the share
options so cancelled of approximately RMB6,372,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to retained profits.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had
exercise prices of HK$13.70, HK$14.80 or HK$24.10 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.81 years.

FR-FHR2013F 12813 B HR
IREFERE R AR 5 R UARR (0 B
& A R #11,960,0007T 2 51 A
GAERREMEARERA— R R
THRERET-

72013512 4318 14 & 171 R A% 4
KT fF {8 50.3987% 7T~ 4.428 70
4787 LB 7.788 T T hAE F 4
T & #)4F 81 /29.55%F o

HZE2012F12A831HIEFE - B
2007F5815H &% H 891,690,184
HRBEEFH - B BFHER
BEAKREBHEMNRAABENARE
6,372,000t EHE A fREHEERER

B g Al o

72012412 4318 4 & 17 {5 B B 42
B1T{EE A13.70% 7T » 14.80/8 T3k
24108 T MMEFHR T &L F
HA4.814F o

Annual Report 2013 =& — =444}

129



130

Notes to the Financial St
W it 7% B R

atements

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT840 A AR ITHIR)

32.Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Cont’d)

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share options

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share

options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on either the Black-
Scholes pricing model or the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life and expectations of early exercise of the
share option were used as inputs into relevant models.

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as
follows:

RUBZEERUAROSERD
T3 ()

(d)

ARENDABERRR

AR T SRR ER P EUR TS O 2 A2
EBEN2BARTRBENR A ER
B-FIRTRBENAA BB IR
BRAOR-FRAEERAR "R
PG 2 - RBENESNFR R
BHRPTEIEREBRAGBR
= o

BIRBER LA ERERRLT

15 May 10 October 13 February 12 December
2007 2007 2008 2013
20074 20074 20084 20134
5A15H 10A10H 2A13H 12A12H
Fair value at measurement date RErEBEBMARLT HK$0.47 HK$0.64 HK$0.54 HK$0.25
0.47% T 0.6478 70 0.5478 75 0.25% 7T
Share price BB HK$1.84 HK$2.93 HK$1.61 HK$0.395
1,848 7T 2.93% 7L 16187 0.395/ 1T
Exercise price 1R HK$1.84 HK$2.99 HK$1.70 HK$0.398
1848 T 2.99% T 1708 7T 0.39878 1T
Expected volatility (expressed s~ TAEARIE (A SE A
weighted average volatiity used RAMMETHRER
in the models) T) 48.9% 61.1% 56.2% 91.3%
Option life (expressed as weighted ~ ABEEH (L ZSEA + 3.25 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
average life used in the models) FROMETHERE 3.25F 106 106 105
T)
Expected dividends BHRE 3.4% 1.21% - -
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERBFE (UNEELE
Exchange Fund Notes) BiE) 4.2% 4.3% 2.7% 2.205%
Exit Rate BE= - - - 53.02%
Valuation model used FRNMEER Black-Scholes Binominal Binominal Binominal
Rh7 - ZBH ZER ZHEs

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There
was no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

T8 HAR IR T AR R IR SR i (IRIR R
RONEFORTFHRFE) U5
REAHABENFABRTMERES
B R SRR R o

SRICHERR IR BR AR LI o SRR 3t
R IR R I B B A R
BB UEEZRELEEHEN T
5t o



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

33.Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group

disposed of a subsidiary. Net assets of the subsidiary being

disposed of at the date of disposal were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Creditors and accrued expenses

Net assets

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Total consideration

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of

For identification purpose only

Be MREFEY
J& A~ BR X e B AR X2

BEFHE

HE—HHE AR

BRE

B.EEHEREBERMEE

HENE A A

HZE2013F12A31B8 L FE A&
BHE—MWEA AR -ZELEWE
AR EBRZEEFENT

Shenzhen
Hong Long
Commercial
Management
Company
Limited*

R TR R
BMEER
BERAF
RMB’000
ARBTTT
60

(60)

100

100

HEEENRSRAFE

EWRREKE

R ENRE RN FEY (60)

(EXE 93]
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33.Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Cont’d)
(a) Disposal of a subsidiary (Cont’d)
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries. Net assets of the
subsidiaries being disposed of at the date of disposal were

B.EEHEREBERMEE (&)

() HEME AT (&)

NEE2012F12A831B ILFEE - K
EEREETHEAR -LEWHBEAQ
ARNHEBRSENEEFEDNT

as follows:
Shenyang Huizhou Xing
Hong Long  Wo Property
Luxegood  Real Estate Development
Development Company Company
Limited Limited* Limited* Total
BEMm
EERERE BHBE AREHE
BRAF BXERLR MHEERAF @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TR ARBTT ARETR
Property, plant and equipment I ER S 606 17 L 623
Deferred tax assets EIEHBEE 177 - = 177
Inventories #&8 399,631 134,966 - 534,597
Trade and other receivables B M BR 0 L A MR 40,220 39,120 - 79,340
Tax recoverable [EY 1B 6,188 - = 6,188
Pledged deposits BRER 1,575 - - 1,575
Bank and cash balances RIIRR e EH 7,572 136 = 7,708
Trade and other payables, and accruals [EffER - E B 2 & 78
RER (273,074) (106,2086) = (379,280)
Receipts in advances BT (145,987) - - (145,987)
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE (48,850) (3,000) = (51,850)
Impairment of assets BERE (8,861) - - (8,861)
Net assets EEFH (20,803) 65,033 = 44,230
The Group balance disposed BEHELEHE 265,731 = 20 265,751
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A AU,/
(E#]) 772 16,967 (20) 17,719
Impairment loss on other receivables  EH i E U R ZUREE R (194,176) = _ (194,176)
Total consideration BRE
- satisfied by cash —-RETM 51,524 82,000 = 133,524
- consideration offsetting against the ~ —HHEMBEAFEE
subsidiary’s liability - (9,500 - (9,500)
51,524 72,500 - 124,024
Nel cash inflow arising from disposal: ~ HEELHREHAFE:
Cash consideration received BEHRERE 51,524 72,500 - 124,024
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of FTHEMBRE LB EEN (7,572) (136) = (7,708)
43,952 72,364 - 116,316

*  For identification purpose only
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33.Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 33.%ZEHE&RERMTE (&)
(Cont’d)

(b) Major non-cash transactions b) TEFRERH

During the year, repayment to an amount due to a
shareholder of approximately RMB56,079,000 was set off
against the proceeds from open offer.

Included in additions to inventories during the year is an
amount of approximately RMB20,434,000 which was
accrued and included in trade and other payables, and
accruals.

34.Contingent Liabilities
(@) At 31 December 2013, the Group provided guarantees

to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group’s properties as follows:

FR-EBEEN—BBREIEBHAR
#56,079,0007C B A& TSR
TE K 34

Bt Rt AFAGFEERE BIET A
MR HEMEMRRTERERAOA
R #20,434,0007T °

JM.FHAREE
(a) R2013%F12A31B A& BB H

RNEEYEE HFT U NRBERME
ERIZIBREEE M5 THRTRME
EROT:

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage B A ERIZ BRI E B E MIRTT
facilities granted to purchasers REER 2,530,000 =

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulting purchasers to
banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantees
shall be released in accordance with the terms of the
guarantee contracts, such as:

() upon the issue of the relevant purchaser’s property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the bank; or

(i) up to a maximum of two years after the full repayment of
mortgage loan by the relevant purchaser.

At 31 December 2013, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

RIBERZGF - HWIZBHERENE
noAKBEARRERENENER
RITZREERIBASERENE
REIR - AEEZ R BEZERBEY
EWEREXRLBERE - BBERS
RIBFERS QRN 10

() HEAETWNEEMAERERE
RARITRE 3

(iy HBEEHFTBHEERIBERER
ZWEE o

MN2013FE 128310 EERAARE
EREMERMEEZEN KSR
j(o

BRAERRREHBEHZAAEBYTE
R B SR AR A M IS IR R -
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34.Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(b)

At 31 December 2013, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks and financial institutions to the extent of
RMB581,000,000 (2012: RMB981,000,000) in respect
of loan facilities granted to certain disposed subsidiaries.
The maximum liabilities of the Group, at 31 December
2013, under the guarantees was the total facilities utilised
by the disposed subsidiaries as at the same date which
amounted to approximately RMB503,000,000 (2012:
RMB503,000,000). The guarantees shall be released, in
accordance with the terms of the guarantee contracts, up
to a maximum of two years after the full repayment of the
loans.

At 31 December 2013, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees since the loan facilities were also
secured by certain certificates of land use rights of lands
owned by the disposed subsidiaries and 100% equity
interest of the disposed subsidiaries.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to a purchase agreement of land use right and
a supplement agreement both dated 31 January 2008,
if the Group cannot complete the underlying property
development project at Chaohu City, Anhui Province, the
PRC (“Chaohu Project”) on or before 31 December 2010,
the vendor shall charge the Group a daily penalty of 0.1% on
the land premium amount. At 31 December 2013, the Group
experienced a delay in the construction progress and would
not be able to meet the contractual construction completion
date. However, up to the date of this annual report, the
Group has not received any enforcement notice from the
vendor in relation to the above. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that the first phase of
Chaohu Project shall be completed in 2015 and the Group
will not be subject to any penalties relating to the delay
in the contractual construction completion date. Hence,
no provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has been in litigation in
relation to various claims totalled RMB120,000,000. Based
on the legal advice obtained, the Directors believe that
the Group has reasonable good chances of successfully
defending those claims. Hence, no provision has been made
in the consolidated financial statements.

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

4. FAREE (&)

(b)

MR2013F12A31H AL BHME T
AETEHENHBRARNERRER
ETRHROTESHEBIREREREA
K #581,000,0007¢ (2012F : AR
#981,000,0007T ) ° 7~ & B 742013
FI2AMHERTH RS EE  BZ
BEHEWBARRRBMEAHME
@ E 4 AN R #503,000,0007T (2012
&F: AR ¥503,000,0007T) ° 5% &R
AR BEERE QG BIBREEEIR
BERERZWT AR -

M2013F 128318 AAEBE K&
BENRAZEHENBARMBEENE
FrufEAEEE RZE SR B
NEMEHRBEER EFRAX
EEEFRERTEBRRENES T
j(o

BEREFRNREHREHZAAELTE
R B R AR A M IS IRR R -

R H 85 A2008F1 A31HH L
FREREH MR RZE  WAS
B 7A2010%F12 A31H 8¢ Z Al & At 5
A B2 BE EAm A B %5
RIEE ([EHEE]) BEFEEL
RS BER0.1 % M AN E B ELE
HEI 7K - 72013F 128318 » K& H
BEMETEEER ReglkaRET
HEEET -AmM BEARFHRAH:
AEBHMAR LA EBEKIER T
AMITEM - BRIBFATLEHR EFR
A HHIEB F BN 2015F B
MAEBEE ISR E@AR% T A
WEES2 B ME(T BE &L o A bt - I AR AR
A RERELEE-

M2013F12A31H  KREE A
A R#120,000,0007T 2 ZTHREM
EEEFA - BB ZARZER
EEREAEEEAENHREN XS
REFPBF - Bt TERGEEHE
HMARETIREE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 85 e 2 M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (b B8 BT 40 A AR ITHIR)

35.Lease Commitments
At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

35.fHERIE
MR2013F12A31H  TA MK L HE
TRMB#ZERASEHRIBLBENT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Within one year 1F A 5,233 2,597
In the second to fifth years inclusive F2F R ELF (FELHF) 5,049 1,801
10,282 4,398

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its offices and staff quarters. Leases are typically
negotiated for three years and do not include contingent rentals.

36.Capital Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Authorised but not contracted for EREBRETY
Contracted but not provided for BEIAB R BE

REMERARAEERERTFERE
TEENES HEAREWE=F8 8
TEESAEE-

36. 8 AN KiE
R12A318 MR LA B REFRE
TENEEMT

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
281,145 837,968
413,827 261,993
694,972 1,099,961
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37.Related Party Transactions
In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions and balances with related
parties during the year:

(a) Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in note
12 to the financial statements.

(b) Balances with related parties

Included in trade and other payables, and
accruals EIRER
Amount due to a former director,

Mr. Zeng Sheng

Included in bank and other borrowings
Amount due to a shareholder, which is
beneficially owned and controlled by
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an executive Director
and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, the spouse of
Ms. Yeung So Miu, an executive Director

Included in finance costs A BLE B AR

Interest accrued for the shareholder’s

loan, which is beneficially owned and

controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an
executive Director and Mr. Cheng Ting

Kong, the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Mui,

an executive Director

Sun Century Group Limited AP5 42 £ B AR A &

JT.HAEALRS
BRREEM B RREAM T RENZF
BEALR S RAERIN NEBEEEEA
ITRFARANRZ RAERINT

(@) TEEEAEHFH
AREENTIETEAEREMREE
= RENTHFBERERMBREK
BteE12 o

(b) EEEAE AL HEER

SRR ABREA R
M B 2 5 5 £ FOE

AARITREMEE
N —E2BRR (BATES
IR E R T BT E
(BITESHEREBZES)
Ba R M) FIR

BRER(ARTEERIEE
TFERBTELEE (RITE

EREBLLZEB) ER

BB R IEH)H R

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T NIE T s
- 437

396,539 443,741
7,702 4,647
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38.Principal Subsidiaries
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. The

3.ETEMBELT
TREFIIBREAKERE BER
BENHMBRARNFR - BEFRA Mt
HMBRARFESERABFEER
TR -BRAEFAN B RO E

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BEBAR-
Percentage
Place of ownership
incorporation interest/
or Issued voting power/
Name of registration Place of and paid profit sharing Principal
subsidiaries HMHEL/  operation up capital ElbRERER/ activities Legal form
WEARZHE BisY LEn ERTREAER RER/ENASY ITEK EEFA
Direct Indirect
E# [
% %
Access Achievement BVI The PRC US$10,000 100 - Investment holding Private limited liabilities
Limited ZBABR 10000% 7 REAR company
i BABBAA
Sun Century Property Group Company  The PRC ~ The PRC RMB299,000,000 - 100 Property development ~ Wholly foreign owned
Limited T HE AR %299,000,0007C and property enterprises
AGtEESEERAT investment NEBELE
MERERDERE
Shenzhen Zirui Real Estate ThePRC  The PRC RMB21,000,000 - 100  Property development  Limited liabilities
Development Limited G f A& 21,000,007 VELES company’g R 27l
M EREHEREARAR
Shenzhen Guang Long City Commercial The PRG The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Property leasingand  Limited liabilties
Management Company Limited P HE AR 1,000,0007 sub-leasing company

MRS AR ERARAA

nEEERER ARAR
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38.Principal Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

)

3B.ETEMBLF (&)

Percentage
Place of ownership
incorporation interest/
or Issued voting power/
Name of registration Place of and paid profit sharing Principal
subsidiaries #MAL/  operation up capital EiERRES/ activities Legal form
il PR Bl  SEnd BRAREMER REE/ENASY IEER it
Direct Indirect
=5 B
% %
Hong Long Winfnder (Shenyang) Real  The PRC The PRC RMB74,000,000 = 100 Property development ~ Wholly foreign owned
Estates Company Limited G heE AR 574,000,000 ELE enterprises
BEHE (5 EXERAA NEBERE
Chaohu Boshing Tourism Development  The PRC~ The PRC US$7,000,000 - 100 Property development  Wholly foreign owned
Company Limited hE h 7,000,000% 7T ELES enterprises
SHERREREERAT NEBERE

# The Group acquired 90% of the equity interest of Shenzheng Zirui Real
Estate Development Limited (“SZ Zirui”) in 2008. According to the share
transfer agreement entered, the vendor shall transfer the remaining 10%
equity interest to the Group upon the delivery of certain properties to the
vendor upon completion of construction. However, the vendor shall not share
any profits in SZ Zirui and shall not participate in the financial and operating
policies of SZ Zirui. Hence, the Group regards SZ Zirui as a wholly-owned
subsidiary.

39.0ther Matters

On 21 December 2009, the Company entered into a credit note
with CCB International Asset Management Limited (“CCB”)
under which CCB agreed to make available to the Company
an offshore financing in the amount of US$40,000,000 (the
“Credit Note”). Grand Prosperity Limited (“Grand Prosperity”),
the then majority shareholder of the Company, was acting as the
corporate guarantor in favour of CCB under the Credit Note.
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39.0ther Matters (Cont’d)

Under the Credit Note, the Company agreed to pay CCB an up-
front fee of HK$76,000,000, which was settled by issue and
allotment of 80,000,000 consideration shares by the Company
at the issue price of HK$0.95 per share.

Under the Credit Note, Grand Prosperity has granted a put
option to CCB. On exercise of the put option, the price payable
by Grand Prosperity for the purchase of each consideration
share would be HK$1.50 per share, being the aggregate of
HK$120,000,000.

On 20 November 2012, the Company received a letter (the
“Letter”) from the solicitors acting on behalf of CCB (“CCB
Solicitors”) alleging and claiming that:

() as a result of the exercise of the put option by CCB, Grand
Prosperity was required under the Credit Note to pay
CCB the aggregate exercise price of the option shares of
HK$120,000,000;

(i) CCB has received from Grand Prosperity only partial
payment in the sum of HK$35,000,000, leaving the
outstanding balance of HK$85,000,000 which remains due
and payable;

(i) pursuant to the terms of the Credit Note, the Company is
required to indemnify CCB against any cost, loss or liability
incurred by CCB as a result of, respectively, an event
of default, and the failure by Grand Prosperity (being an
obligor) to pay any amount due under a finance document
as defined under the Credit Note on its due date; and

(iv) pursuant to the terms of the Credit Note, an event of default
includes the non-payment by an obligor of any amount
payable pursuant to a finance document as defined under
the Credit Note.

Under the Letter, CCB’s Solicitors demanded payment from
the Company (by way of indemnity) of (i) the unpaid sum of
HK$85,000,000, together with (i) default interest at the rate
of ten per cent per annum from 13 January 2012, the original
completion date of the alleged exercise of the put option, until
the date of payment and (i) all costs and expenses (including
legal fees) incurred by them in recovering payment.
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39.0ther Matters (Cont’d)

On 8 February 2013, the Company received a writ of summons
issued out of the court with respect to the dispute between CCB
as the plaintiff with the Company as one of the defendants. For
the avoidance of doubt, Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu,
being a director of Grand Prosperity and the then chairman and
president of the Company and Mr. Zeng Sheng, being a director
of Grand Prosperity and the then vice-chairman of the Company,
have been joined as the other defendants.

Based on counsel opinion, the Directors are of the view that the
claims are not valid.

No judgment on the legal proceedings has been made yet
and the financial impact of the legal proceedings cannot be
ascertained at the date of this annual report. Hence, no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

40.Events After the Reporting Period

41

On 8 January 2014, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company won the bid for the land use right of a
piece of state-owned construction land with the site area of
approximately 72,350m? with a plot ratio of more than 1 but
not more than 2.7 and a planned gross floor area of 195,345m?
for residential units located at Hua Mao Jie Dong, Fushun
Economic Development Zone in Liaoning Province, the PRC at a
consideration of RMB95,510,000.

.Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014.
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